
AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE 
COMMITTEE

AGENDA

Date: Monday, 29th July, 2019

Time: 7.00 pm

Venue: Guildhall



2

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Information for Members of the Public

Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 
Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, 
access to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt 
as you face the Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall.  There is 
dedicated disabled parking space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings 
are held on the ground floor, which can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair 
user or have restricted mobility and you wish to attend a meeting, please telephone or email 
the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make any necessary arrangements to 
assist your visit.

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect 
copies of Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents 
used in the preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot 
of each report. Part II of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' 
for which it is anticipated that the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither 
reports nor background papers are open to public inspection.

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to 
report on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio 
recording and providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used 
to report on the proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. 
Accordingly, the attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and 
broadcast. By choosing to attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your 
consent to being filmed or recorded and for any footage to be broadcast or published.  

Please note the Council audio records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings 
are published on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect 
will be posted in the meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting 
of the City Council he/she will be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and 
audio being published live to the Council’s website. The Chairman of the meeting, can at their 
discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if in their opinion, continuing to do so would 
prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider that continued recording might 
infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision.

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is 
allowed for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any 
matter on the Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 
p.m. on the last working day before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing 
the officer mentioned below.

If you have any queries about this Agenda or require any details of background papers, or to 
discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, film, video or sound recording please 
contact Ellen Meachen, Democratic and Electoral Services Assistant, Guildhall, 
Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722006 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  
committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of 
ethnic minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information.

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also 
available electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website 
Address: worcester.gov.uk



3

Audit and Governance Committee
Monday, 29 July 2019

Members of the Committee:-
Chairman: Councillor Alan Amos (C)

Vice-Chairman: Councillor Patricia Agar (LCo)

Councillor Jenny Barnes (LCo)
Councillor Nida Hassan (C)
Councillor Stephen Hodgson (C)

Councillor Neil Laurenson (G)
Councillor Andrew Roberts (C)
Councillor Richard Udall (L)

C = Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-Operative

AGENDA

Part 1
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC)

1. APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTES To receive details of any Member 
nominated to attend the meeting in place of 
a Member of the Committee.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST To receive any declarations of interest.

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be 
allowed, each speaker being allocated a 
maximum of five minutes, for members of 
the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any item on the 
Agenda or within the remit of the 
Committee.

4. MINUTES 
Page(s) 1 - 4

To be approved and signed.

5. REVISED CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE AND ANNUAL 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 
Page(s) 5 - 36
Contact 
Officer 

Sian Stroud, Deputy 
Director - 
Governance
Tel: 01905 722017

1. That the Committee approves the Annual 
Governance Statement 2018/19 at 
Appendix 1 for sign off by the Leader of 
the Council and the Managing Director 
for inclusion in the Annual Statement of 
Accounts;

2. That the Committee approves the revised 
Local Code of Corporate Governance at 
Appendix 2; and

3. That the Committee approves the 
Corporate Governance Action Plan 
2019/20 at Appendix 3 and notes that 
progress will be reported to each 
meeting of the Committee during the 
year.



4

6. CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT 
REPORT Q4 2018/19 
Page(s) 37 - 56
Contact 
Officer 

William Wade, 
Transformation and 
Performance Officer
Tel: 01905 722500

That the Committee notes the Corporate 
Risk Management Report.

7. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT, 
LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 
AND STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
Contact 
Officer 

Mark Baldwin, Head of 
Finance
Tel: 01905 722007

Report to follow.

8. INTERNAL AUDIT EXTERNAL 
ASSESSMENT PROGRESS REPORT 
Page(s) 57 - 76
Contact 
Officer 

Andy Bromage, Head 
of Internal Audit 
Shared Service
Tel: 01905 722051

The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service 
recommends that the report is noted.

9. INTERNAL AUDIT 2018/2019 
ANNUAL REPORT INCLUDING 
THE AUDIT OPINION AND 
COMMENTARY 
Page(s) 77 - 110
Contact 
Officer 

Andy Bromage, Head 
of Internal Audit 
Shared Service
Tel: 01905 722051

That the Committee notes the report 
contents.

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS Which in the opinion of the Chairman is of 
sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration.



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

20th March 2019

Present: Councillor Alan Amos in the Chair

Councillors Agar, Ditta, S. Hodgson, 
Laurenson, Roberts, G. Squires (Vice-
Chairman) and Udall

Also in Attendance:

Hassan Rohiman, Ernst & Young LLB, 
Natalie Ryan, Ernst & Young LLB

Officers: Mark Baldwin  Head of Finance
Andy Bromage  Head of Internal Audit 

Shared Service
Shane Flynn  Corporate Director, Finance 

and Resources
Sian Stroud  Deputy Director - 

Governance

1 Declarations of Interest 

None.

2 Public Participation 

None.

3 Minutes 

Councillor Udall raised that as noted in the Minutes, the Managing Director had 
proposed that a meeting take place with Ward Councillors to discuss the money 
awarded to St Johns Traders and how this should be spent. Shane Flynn agreed 
he would look to set up a meeting in the coming weeks.

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 19th December 2018 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the chairman.

4 2018/19 Internal Audit Progress Report to 28th February 2019 

The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service presented the report to the Committee, 
noting that the report comprised 3 summary reports of work that had been 
completed. The Health and Safety Operations Training Programme have returned 
an assurance of “limited”. A robust management action plan is in place with 
further resources allocated from People Services to assist in addressing the 
administration weaknesses identified in the audit. The exception that was reported 
last time in regard to the Debtors area had been addressed since Committee sat 
and the outstanding issue has since been satisfied so it won’t be coming back to 
Committee.

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



20th March 2019 2

The Chair asked the Head of Finance to clarify a section of the report regarding an 
investigation that took place into the Trade Waste Service, relating to a financial 
loss.

RESOLVED: That the Committee note the contents of the report.

5 Draft Internal Audit Plan for 2019-20 

The Head of the Internal Audit Shared Service presented the report, explaining 
that the report is a repeat of what was presented to Committee at the last 
meeting and that there has been no material changes within the plan. It was 
noted that some additional work that was agreed after the plan had been put 
together will have a small impact on the plan; this change will be brought back to 
Committee at a later date.

Officers responded to questions from Members regarding specific aspects of the 
report.

RESOLVED: That the Committee approve the draft Annual Internal Audit 
Plan and Key Performance indicators.

6 External Audit Plan - 2018/19 

The Chair welcomed External Auditors from Ernst and Young LLP, Mr Hassan 
Rohiman and Natalie Ryan, to the meeting. The representatives presented the 
report and Members were invited to ask questions, to which the representatives 
provided clarity where necessary. The Chair thanked Mr Rohiman and Ms Ryan for 
their work.

RESOLVED: That the Committee endorse the external auditor’s Audit Plan 
for 2018/19.

7 Decommissioning of Sansome Walk 

The Chair welcomed the Deputy Director of Governance, Sian Stroud, to the 
Committee and the meeting. The Chair noted that he had asked for the item to be 
brought to Committee following concerns that had been raised. 

The Deputy Director of Governance presented the report, noting that it is in the 
remit of the Audit and Governance Committee, as well as the Policy and 
Resources Committee, to look at the process the project has followed.

The Chair thanked the Deputy of Governance for the detail and clarity of the 
report and noted that the Committee should comment only on the process that 
the project has followed. 

Officers responded to numerous questions and comments from Members 
regarding specific aspects of the report and project as a whole. The Deputy 
Director of Governance agreed to provide the Committee with an update at the 
next meeting but a full report would not be presented until the September 
Committee meeting.

Page 2



20th March 2019 3

RESOLVED: That the Committee:
1. note the summary of decisions and advice to date given in 

relation to the decommissioning of the Sansome Walk former swimming 
pool site.

2. request that the Council’s Internal Audit Service undertakes a 
Lessons Learned review of this project, to take account of the information 
set out in this report as well as the specialist advice currently being 
commissioned for the Council on demolition options and costs.

8 Local Code of Corporate Governance and Action Plan 

The Deputy Director of Governance presented the report that recommends the 
local code of corporate governance be updated in accordance with CIPFA’s (The 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) seven new corporate 
governance principles. Additionally, the report recommends that the code is 
refreshed with actions and improvements from reviewing the code, as well as 
lessons learnt from Internal and External Audit actions. An action plan was 
proposed and recommended by CIPFA, which would act as a rolling plan of 
improvements.

Officers responded to questions from Members in relation to when the revised 
code of corporate governance would be brought before Committee and further 
questions relating to stakeholder engagement.

RESOLVED: That the Committee:
1.     note the update on progress to review the Local Code of 

Corporate Governance; and
2.  endorse the proposals to introduce a Corporate Governance 

Action Plan, with a proposed Plan for year 2019/2020 to be brought to 
the next meeting of the Committee for approval.

9 Any Other Business 

The Chair noted that Councillor Squires would be stepping down following the next 
election and thanked him for the work and support he had undertaken as the Vice 
Chair for the Committee.

Duration of the meeting: 7.00 pm to 8.10 pm

Chairman at the meeting on
29th July 2019

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 29th July 2019

Report of: Deputy Director - Governance

Subject: ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2018/19 AND LOCAL CODE OF 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
ACTION PLAN

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee approves the Annual Governance Statement 2018/19 at 
Appendix 1 for sign off by the Leader of the Council and the Managing 
Director for inclusion in the Annual Statement of Accounts.

1.2 That the Committee approves the revised Local Code of Corporate 
Governance at Appendix 2.

1.3 That the Committee approves the Corporate Governance Action Plan 
2019/20 at Appendix 3 and notes that progress will be reported to each 
meeting of the Committee during the year.

2. Annual Governance Statement 

2.1 The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded, properly 
accounted for and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  In discharging 
these responsibilities, the Council must ensure that there is good governance and a 
sound system of internal control in place, which facilitate the effective exercise of the 
Council’s functions and which include arrangements for the management of risk.

2.2 The Council’s governance arrangements have been reviewed and an Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) has been drafted and is attached to this report at 
Appendix 1. 

2.3 The AGS is a document which provides the Council and its stakeholders with:

• Information about the arrangements in place for good governance and the 
robustness of those arrangements, and

• An assurance about the degree of compliance and the need for improvement 
in governance arrangements.

2.4 The overall picture demonstrates continued progress and a sustained focus on 
improving the Council’s governance arrangements. The Council’s ongoing 
improvement programmes are referenced in the AGS at section 5. In addition, from 
this year onwards the AGS will be supported by a corporate governance action plan, 
as described in section 4.

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



2.5 The draft AGS was published with the draft Statement of Accounts on 31 May 2019. 
Once approved, the AGS will be signed by the Leader of the Council and the 
Managing Director (Head of Paid Service) on behalf of the Council.  The agreed 
statement will accompany the Audited Statement of Accounts which is the subject of 
a separate item on this Agenda.

3. Local Code of Corporate Governance

3.1 The Committee received a report at its March meeting relating to the proposed 
revision of the Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance. Since the Council’s 
existing Code was adopted, a new CIPFA Good Governance Framework has been 
published which sets out seven principles of good corporate governance. 

3.2 The Council’s Local Code of Corporate Governance has now been reviewed to bring it 
in line with the new framework and the seven principles and also to reflect the 
transition to the committee model of governance. 

3.3 The revised Code is attached at Appendix 2. Although the evidence base for the 
content is substantially the same as the previous version, it clearly links each of the 
seven CIPFA principles across to the Council’s activities and governance 
arrangements.

3.4 The Code will be reviewed at least annually to respond to improvements and 
changes in the Council’s corporate governance arrangements. In future years the 
revised Code and associated annual action plan (see below) will form part of the 
reporting of the Annual Governance Statement.

4. Corporate Governance Action Plan

4.1 The Committee received a report at its March meeting relating to the proposed 
adoption of a rolling annual action plan to deliver specific corporate governance 
improvements, which can be monitored by the Committee. This is intended to be 
complementary to the mid year review of the Annual Governance Statement and the 
work going on across the Council’s committee system to deliver a wide range of 
improvements in governance and service delivery as well as complementary to the 
work of the internal and external audit service. 

4.2 The role of the Committee in relation to this annual action plan will be to seek 
assurance from officers and the responsible governance oversight bodies that 
specific and measurable corporate governance improvements are being delivered as 
planned.

4.2 The proposed first annual action plan is attached at Appendix 3. As a starting 
position, one specific area of improvement has been identified against each of the 
seven principles, drawn from actions previously identified by the Corporate 
Governance Board or the Monitoring Officer, or in the AGS itself. It should be noted 
that the focus on the action plan is Council-wide corporate governance activities as 
opposed to service level delivery to customers, the latter being addressed through 
performance reporting and service improvement plans which report through 
Corporate Leadership Team to the relevant Policy and Regulatory Committees.

4.3 Progress against the action plan will be monitored by the Corporate Governance 
Board and reported to the Committee by the Monitoring Officer at each meeting.

Page 6



4.4 The Committee may choose to add further actions to this rolling plan in consultation 
with the Monitoring Officer at any point in the municipal year and the whole plan will 
be subject to a refresh each July.

5. Implications

5.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications

None directly arising from this report.

5.2 Legal and Governance Implications

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 
effectiveness of its governance framework, including the system of internal control.

5.3 Risk Implications

Maintaining high standards of governance will help to protect the Council’s reputation 
and its ability to deliver corporate and service priorities.  

5.4 Corporate/Policy Implications

The Council operates through a governance framework which brings together 
legislative requirements, governance principles and management processes. This 
framework defines the principles which underpin the Council’s governance.

5.5 Equality Implications

None directly arising from this report.

5.6 Human Resources Implications

None directly arising from this report.

5.7 Health and Safety Implications

None directly arising from this report.

Ward(s): All
Contact Officer: Sian Stroud, Deputy Director – Governance 

Tel: 01905 722019; Email: sian.stroud@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: None

Appendix1- Annual Governance Statement 2018/19

Appendix 2- Local Code of Corporate Governance

Appendix 3- Corporate Governance Action Plan 2019/20

Page 7

mailto:sian.stroud@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Worcester City Council
Annual Governance Statement 2018/19

1. Scope of Responsibility

1.1 Worcester City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded 
and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.  
Worcester City Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

1.2 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place 
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise 
of its functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

1.3 Worcester City Council has approved and adopted a Code of Corporate Governance, 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE guidance. The Code of Corporate 
Governance, which was in place for 2018/19, is available on the Council’s website at 
www.worcester.gov.uk or can be obtained from the Monitoring Officer, Worcester City 
Council, The Guildhall, High Street, Worcester, WR1 2EY. 

1.4 This statement explains how Worcester City Council has complied with the code and also 
meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, which 
requires all relevant bodies to prepare an annual governance statement. 

2. The purpose of the Governance Framework

2.1 The governance framework comprises the cultural values, systems and processes by 
which the Council is directed and its activities through which it is accountable to, 
engages with and leads its communities.  The framework allows the Council to monitor 
the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives 
have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for money. 

2.2 A significant part of the framework is the Council’s system of internal control which is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risks of failure to 
achieve policies, aims and objectives but can provide reasonable, though not absolute, 
assurance of effectiveness.  The system of internal control is based on an on-going 
process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Worcester 
City Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential 
impact of those risks being realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically.

2.3 The governance framework is built around the following core principles:

 Focus on the outcomes for Worcester City and create a vision for the area which 
the Council can play a leadership role in helping to implement.

 Members and officers working together to achieve a common purpose with clearly 
defined roles.

Page 9 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 1

http://www.worcester.gov.uk/
http://www.worcester.gov.uk/


 Promoting values for the Council and demonstrating values of good governance 
through upholding high standards of conduct.

 Taking informed and transparent decisions which are subject to effective scrutiny 
and managing risk.

 Developing the capacity and capability of members and officers to be effective.
 Engage with local people to ensure robust public accountability.

2.4 A Governance framework has been in place at Worcester City Council for the year ended 
31 March 2019 and up to the date of approval of the 2018/19 Statement of Accounts.

3. The Governance Framework

3.1 The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s governance 
framework are described below.

3.2 In 2016/17 the Council approved the Worcester City Council City Plan 2016-2021. It 
sets out the City Council’s strategic vision for shaping Worcester’s future – ”Building a 
successful future on 2,000 years of history”, and sets out five key themes that will 
deliver this vision. The five key themes are:

 Stronger and Connected Communities
 A Prosperous City
 A Healthy and Active City
 A Heritage City for the 21st Century
 Sustaining and Improving our Assets.

The City Plan 2016-2021 also identifies the goals, strategies and measures that will 
address these themes by creating a new relationship with people and partners to build a 
successful, thriving and welcoming city. The Council will continue to focus on core 
projects as part of its internal strategies , to deliver cumulative revenue savings, to 
ensure that the technology the Council uses is fit for the future and to secure the skills, 
knowledge and attributes that will be required in the Council’s workforce to enable the 
Council to deliver its priorities. 

3.3 The Council’s approach to corporate governance is underpinned by our values. In 2016, 
the Council embarked on a new change improvement programme which identified a 
number of workstreams for improvement under the following five themes:

 Good governance
 Committed People
 Strong Performance
 Customer focussed
 Creative Council.

In 2017, these five themes were adopted as a new set of Council values and are at the 
heart of the Council’s Achieving Excellence improvement programme.

Page 10



3.4 Council Structure – With effect from Annual Council on 16 May 2017, the Council 
moved to a Committee model of governance. The new arrangements are now fully 
embedded. There was a review of the new arrangements during the first half of 2018/19 
with recommendations for minor changes to the Constitution as a result.

3.5 The Council Constitution –The Council Constitution sets out how the Council operates, 
how decisions are made and the procedures followed to ensure these are transparent 
and accountable to local people. The agendas and minutes of all the public meetings of 
the Council and its committees are available on our website. 

3.6 Policy development and Scrutiny- During 2018/19, the Council had in place the 
following policy committees, all of which have an externally-focussed scrutiny role. 

 Policy and Resources Committee
 Communities Committee
 Environment Committee
 Place and Economic Development Sub-committee
 Income Generation Sub-Committee
 Personnel and General Purposes Sub-committee

These committees also receive quarterly performance information and financial 
monitoring of budgets and services.

3.7 The Standards Committee - This committee’s role is to promote and maintain 
high standards of conduct by Members and to monitor the operation of the Members 
Code of Conduct. 

3.8 Head of Paid Service – The Managing Director is designated Head of Paid Service and 
has overall corporate management and operational responsibility. The Managing 
Director provides professional advice to all parties in the decision-making process and 
together with the Monitoring Officer is responsible for the system of record keeping for 
all Council decisions. 

3.9 Monitoring Officer - The Deputy Director Governance is designated as Monitoring 
Officer.  It is the function of the Monitoring Officer to ensure compliance with 
established policies, procedures, laws and regulations.

3.10 Chief Finance Officer – The Corporate Director Finance & Resources is designated as 
Chief Finance Officer in accordance with Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
The S151 Officer has responsibility for establishing sound financial management within 
the Council and ensuring adherence to the Council’s own financial standards and rules. 
The Council’s financial management arrangements conform with the governance 
requirements of the CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government (2010). 

3.11 Code of Corporate Governance – The local code sets out the Council’s definition of 
Corporate Governance, the values it stands for and the key principles of corporate 
governance that it has adopted.

Page 11



3.12 Anti Fraud and Corruption Arrangements – The Council continues to review and 
update its Anti Fraud and Corruption Policy to ensure it demonstrates a commitment to 
tackling fraud and corruption whether within or external to the Council.

3.13 Corporate Complaints – The Council has a complaints policy and procedure which 
describes how complaints can be made and how they will be monitored. 

3.14 Stakeholder Communication – The following main methods are used to communicate 
the Council’s objectives and achievements to local people:

 City Life, a quarterly newsletter sent to all households
 The Council Website
 Social media including Facebook and Twitter
 The annual Council Tax leaflet.

The Council also undertakes consultation exercises: for example, budget consultation.

3.15 Partnership Governance – Partnerships are a key component of service delivery. The 
Council is engaged in a wide range of partnerships including shared service 
arrangements with other Councils including for ICT and for Regulatory Services, as well 
as a public-private partnership for Revenues and Benefits. During 2018/19 the Council 
reviewed it shared services arrangements and has subsequently decided to change the 
way in which some of its services are delivered. This has included implementing a 
decision to terminate its contract with Place Partnership Limited, a property 
management company, and to bring property management services in-house with effect 
from 1 April 2019. The Council will also withdraw from the public private partnership 
arrangement for customer services, the Worcestershire Hub, from April 2020.

3.16 Performance Management – The Council has reviewed and improved its performance 
management framework as part of the Achieving Excellence programme, and 
performance is reported at service, directorate and corporate level using a proprietary 
software package. Each of the Council’s committee’s receives performance reports on a 
quarterly basis through bespoke reports that have been agreed by Members. 

3.17 Risk Management - The Corporate Risk Register is monitored by senior management 
on a quarterly basis and is also reported to the Policy and Resources Committee for 
oversight of corporate risks. The Audit and Governance Committee also receives a risk 
management report annually to provide assurance that the Council’s risk management 
strategy is being followed.  

3.18 Internal Audit – Worcester City Council’s responsibility for maintaining an adequate 
and effective internal audit function is set out in the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015. The Internal Audit function has operated as a shared service since 
2010/11. It is hosted by Worcester City, and provides the Internal Audit function for five 
district councils as well as the Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Service.  The 
shared service operates in accordance with the Institute of Internal Auditors 
International Standards and the United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS) and objectively reviews on a continuous basis the extent to which the internal 
control environment supports and promotes the achievement of the Council’s objectives 

Page 12



and contributes to the proper, economic and effective use of resources as well as 
ensuring there is protection of the public purse.

The Internal Audit Plan for 2018/2019 was risk-based (assessing audit and assurance 
factors, materiality risk, impact of failure, system risk, resource risk  fraud risk, and 
external risk) using a predefined scoring system, which is embedded in the 
methodology, and was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee. 

Audits across the corporate spectrum have been undertaken, the outcomes of which 
have been reported to the Audit and Governance Committee where appropriate.

Based on the audits performed in accordance with the revised audit plan the Head of 
Internal Audit Shared Service concludes that the Council’s governance framework 
arrangements during 2018/19 have not always provided full assurance but are 
satisfactory in most areas, with any identified issues being addressed by the 
management team as part of the process of continuous improvement. The majority of 
areas returned assurances of moderate or above.  Where assurances were limited, e.g. 
Health and Safety (Training Records - Operations) and Homelessness, a robust action 
plan has been agreed by management and will be monitored for completion. Although 
there are controls in place to reduce the potential for fraudulent actions taking place 
there was an instance that was investigated during 2018/19 the outcome which led to 
two members of staff leaving the organisation and a verbal report made before the 
Audit and Governance Committee providing assurance that in this instance the 
fraudulent activity was low level and there was no material loss to the organisation.

The Internal Audit Shared Service was subject to an external assessment during 
2017/18 in regard to compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. The 
Standards require all Internal Audit Services to undergo an independent assessment 
every five years. Completed in October 2017 the assessor confirmed the Service was 
solid and reliable and reported in the formal report that there were “no areas of non-
compliance with the standards that would effect the overall scope of the internal audit 
activity”. Several recommendations were made which will enhance the Service and 
these have been completed. A further independent assessment will take place before 
October 2022.

4. The Review of Effectiveness

4.1 Worcester City Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of 
the effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control.  
The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within 
the Authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
governance environment, the Head of Internal Audit’s annual report, and also by 
comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 
Senior management oversight of corporate governance is carried out through the 
Council’s Corporate Governance Board which has reviewed a number of governance 
themes during 2018/19 and reported where appropriate to the Audit and Governance 
Committee. 

Page 13



4.2 During 2018/19 the following matters have been considered by the Audit and 
Governance Committee:

 Approval of annual statement of accounts for 2017/18
 Approval of Annual Governance Statement for 2017/18
 Internal Audit progress reports
 The Council’s anti fraud and corruption policy
 The decision-making processes supporting the decommissioning of a former 

swimming pool in the Council’s ownership.

4.3 In addition, during 2018/19 the Corporate Governance Board has reviewed the following 
matters:

 Training for Members on treasury management in local government
 Ongoing compliance with core legal requirements relating to information law, 

equalities and health and safety
 Progress of internal audit work
 The development of a new Corporate Governance Code and Corporate 

Governance Action Plan.
 

4.4 The Council has embedded the Achieving Excellence improvement programme during 
2018/19 and progress on key projects is reported to the Policy and Resources 
Committee on a quarterly basis. The areas of improvement are structured under 5 
themes as follows:

• Customer Focused - customers at the heart of everything we do
• Good Governance - effective decision making and balanced risks
• Committed People - agile, talented, and inspired people
• Creative Council - being innovative in our use of resources
• Strong Performance - delivering what we set out to achieve.

4.5 The following improvements have been achieved during 2018/19:

Customer Focused

 We have adopted a new customer service strategy.

 We have decided to bring our customer contact centre in-house to provide an 
improved level of service delivery and enable us to get better access to feedback 
from our customers.

 We have listened to customer feedback in areas of frontline service delivery and 
made specific changes to services based on that feedback.

Page 14



Good Governance

 We have put in place a suite of policies relating to capital investment strategies, 
capital asset management and acquisition and development of property. This 
overall framework enables the Council to better manage its existing assets and 
make investments, ensuring a secure financial future.

 We have embedded project management into the organisation. Project gateway 
approvals processes are used to ensure that project scope remains clear and that 
significant risks are managed and appropriately escalated.

 We invited an external review of our Development Management Service and we 
are using the feedback to implement a number of service improvements.

 We have undertaken a review of the effectiveness of the new Committee system 
of decision-making.

 We have decided to introduce a rolling annual plan of specific corporate 
governance improvements in an action plan that we will deliver under the 
oversight of the Audit and Governance Committee.

Committed People

 We have published and begun to implement the People Strategy and rolled out 
the new performance development review process.

 We have enhanced our training offer for all employees through an online Learning 
Lounge.

 We have taken feedback from the staff survey and staff conferences to help us 
understand the sort of organisation that our employees want to work for.

Creative Council

 Under our new framework for investment, we have completed our first major real 
estate acquisition.

 We have developed and reviewed a range of income streams which are delivered 
using our existing assets, knowledge and skills, under the oversight of the 
Income Generation Sub-committee.

 We have brought Property Services back in-house from a previous shared 
services arrangement.

Strong Performance

 The new Performance Framework has been rolled out across the Council.

Page 15



 The Council’s Transformation Programme has been translated into the Council’s 
Income and Efficiency Plan which was approved as part of the Council’s budget in 
February 2019.

 New investments in ICT are being delivered as part of the ICT Strategy published 
in 2018.

 We undertook a significant business continuity exercise and are taking the 
learning from it to develop improved responses with our partner organisations in 
the City.

4.6 The following improvements which form part of the Achieving Excellence Programme will 
be carried forward to 2019/20:

Customer focused

 We will be bringing back in-house our customer contact services by 1 April 2019. 
This is a significant change project for the Council and will bring us closer to our 
customers.

 We will ensure our stakeholder management plan is implemented and is a useful 
tool for communicating and working with stakeholders.

Good governance

 We will review, streamline and simplify our policy framework.

 We will continue to review and exercise our emergency response and business 
continuity arrangements to ensure that we are able to effectively contribute to a 
multi agency response to potential incidents and emergencies.

Committed People

 We will continue to deliver the new People Strategy to ensure that we can attract, 
retain, recognise and develop our people resource and enable our workers to 
achieve excellence in everything we do

Creative Council

 Income Generation: Deriving new and sustainable sources of income for the 
Council continues to be a priority for us. We will ensure that our income and 
investment activities are appropriate and well managed

Strong Performance

 We will continue to monitor service standards and make service improvements in 
response to customer feedback.

Page 16



 A new capital asset management plan, on a three year basis, will ensure that we 
have a planned programme of re-investment in our assets.

5. Significant Governance Issues

5.1 The statutory duties of the Monitoring Officer and the Section 151 Officer require them 
to draw to members’ attention to any improper practices, financial imprudence or 
problems with the systems of internal control.  No significant weaknesses or issues have 
been identified.

5.2 However, Worcester City Council seeks to strengthen its governance arrangements by 
monitoring internal and external assurance gathering throughout the year as outlined in 
paragraph 2. We are open to challenge and invite external assessors to work with us as 
we continuously improve.

5.3 The Achieving Excellence improvement programme will continue in 2019/20, now 
entitled “Business Excellence”. The Council’s top priorities for delivery against City Plan 
and achieving excellence are identified and will be disseminated to staff through a 
Business Plan. Some of the improvement initiatives for 2018/19 will also carry forward 
to 2019/20 and will be incorporated into a revised Business Excellence Programme 
which will be finalised in the first quarter of 2019/20.

5.4 In summary the Council has maintained a clear focus on its corporate priorities during 
the year 2018/2019 while also ensuring that high standards of corporate governance 
were maintained. From a financial perspective, the Council set a balanced budget which 
was successfully agreed on a cross-party basis through the Council’s Committee system 
and the Council has achieved a positive financial outturn against this budget. 

Sian Stroud
Monitoring Officer

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 1 of 14

Worcester City Council

LOCAL CODE OF 
CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE
2019/20

Title Local Code of Corporate Governance
Status DRAFT
Document Version V0.1
Author Sian Stroud
Sponsor Sian Stroud
Owner
Approved by
Approved date
Review frequency Annual
Next Review: May 2020

Version History
Version Date Description
Draft July 2019 For Audit and 

Governance 
Committee

Page 19 Agenda Item 5
Appendix 2



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 2 of 14

Contents
Contents....................................................................................................2
1 Introduction.....................................................................................3
2 Applying the principles of good governance..........................................4
2.1 The Council’s Corporate Governance Principles .....................................5
3 Monitoring and Review ....................................................................13
3.1 Annual Governance Statement .........................................................13
4. Related Documents .........................................................................14

Page 20



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 3 of 14

1 Introduction

1.1 Corporate Governance is a term used to describe how organisations direct and 
control what they do. As well as systems and processes this includes culture 
and values. For councils this also includes how a council relates to the 
communities that it serves. Good corporate governance requires local 
authorities to carry out their functions in a way that demonstrates 
accountability, transparency, effectiveness, integrity, impartiality and 
inclusivity. Corporate governance provides structure through which strategic 
objectives are set and performance monitored.  It enables the authority to 
monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether 
those objectives have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

1.2 Worcester City Council operates through a governance framework that brings 
together an underlying set of legislative requirements, governance principles 
and management processes.  The Council is committed to demonstrating that it 
has the necessary corporate governance arrangements in place to perform 
effectively. The Council has developed and adopted a local Code of Corporate 
Governance which brings together in one document all the governance and 
accountability arrangements the Council currently has in place.  The Code is 
based on best practice guidance set out in CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government.  

1.3 The Code is written around the following seven core principles set out in the 
CIPFA/SOLACE best practice guidance. The aim of the principles is that the local 
authority achieves its intended outcomes while acting in the public interest at 
all times. The principles are as follows:

A. Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical 
values, and respecting the rule of law;

B. Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement;

C. Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and 
environmental benefits;

D. Determining the interventions necessary to optimize the achievement of 
the intended outcomes;

E. Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership 
and the individuals within it;

F. Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and 
strong public financial management; and

G. Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to 
deliver effective accountability.

The diagram below shows how the principles relate to each other. CIPFA states that:

Page 21



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 4 of 14

“Principles A and B permeate implementation of Principles C to G. The diagram 
illustrates that good governance is dynamic, and that an entity as a whole should be 
committed to improving governance on a continuing basis through a process of 
evaluation and review.”

Page 22



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 5 of 14

2 Applying the Principles of Good Governance at Worcester City 
Council

2.1 In the following tables the Code details how the Council meets each of the 
seven core principles, and the supporting principles which underpin them. 

Principle A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment 
to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law 

Local government organisations are accountable for how much they spend, and 
how they use the resources under their stewardship. This includes outputs, 
positive and negative, and for the outcomes they have achieved. They have an 
overarching responsibility to serve the public interest in adhering to legislation 
and government policies. It is essential that they can demonstrate the 
appropriateness of their actions and have the mechanisms in place to 
encourage and enforce ethical values and respect for the law.

What we do to achieve this

The Council fosters a culture of behaviour based on shared values, high ethical 
principles and good conduct. The Council does this by establishing and keeping 
under review:
 The Council’s own values as enshrined in the Competency Framework, 

which underpin performance and development reviews and are evidenced in 
Codes of Conduct that set a standard for behaviour;

 The Code of Conduct for Elected Members;
 The Code of Conduct for Employees;
 The Good Practice Protocol for Councillors and Employees dealing with 

planning matters;
 The Statutory Declaration of Acceptance of Office, which all Members are 

required to sign;
 A Protocol governing the relations between Political Groups
 A Protocol governing Member/Officer relations;
 Key protocols, such as the Procurement Code and the Financial Procedure 

Rules;
 The roles of Members and Officers in decision-making;
 Appropriate and timely advice and guidance to both Members and Officers;
 Systems for reporting and dealing with any incidents of fraud and 

corruption, which includes whistleblowing;
 A register of Interests and declaration of Gifts and Hospitality accepted;
 The Council’s Equality and Inclusion Strategy and associated guidance and 

toolkits;

The Standards Committee’s role is to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct by Members and to monitor the operation of the Members Code of 
Conduct.

All investigations under the Member Code of Conduct are carried out locally 
under the guidance of the Monitoring Officer.

Any breach of the Employee Code of Conduct is investigated in accordance 
with the Council’s disciplinary procedure.

Under the Member Code of Conduct, Members:
 are required to register details of disclosable pecuniary interests in the 

Authority’s Register of interests;
 who become aware of any changes to his/her interests to provide details of 

that change to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days;
 are required to review their declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests 

on an annual basis.

Gifts and hospitality and conflicts of interest are registered as and when 

Page 23



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 6 of 14

Principle B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement 

Local government is run for the public good; organisations therefore should 
ensure openness in their activities. Clear, trusted channels of communication 
and consultation should be used to engage effectively with all groups of 
stakeholders, such as individual citizens and service users, as well as 
institutional stakeholders.

What we do to achieve this

The Council seeks and responds to the views of stakeholders and the 
community by:
 Forming and maintaining relationships with the leaders of other 

organisations;
 Ensuring partnership arrangements demonstrate clear, appropriate 

governance accountabilities;
 Producing plans for service delivery;
 Identifying our key stakeholders and ensuring that levels of communication 

are appropriately tailored to them;
 Promoting public consultation opportunities, so that people feel able to 

influence decision making;
 Using an approach that recognises that people are different and gives 

everyone the same or an equal  opportunity to information, advice and 

required throughout the year, and details are available on-line. Member 
declarations and registrations are maintained and monitored by the Monitoring 
Officer.

Page 24



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 7 of 14

support in ways that are suited to the needs of circumstances of the 
individual;

 Providing for the public the opportunity to ask questions or make 
representations at full Council, Policy and Regulatory Committees;

 Continually developing clear channels of communication;
 Providing a modernised ICT Service that meets the needs and aspirations of 

the organisation and the communities we serve;
 Issuing the Council’s quarterly magazine, City Life, to every household in 

the City and making it available on the Council’s website;
 Consulting on our budget and spending priorities;
 Adhering to the Statement of Community Involvement for consultation on 

planning matters;
 Participating in the Countywide Residents Survey for the City;
 Staff surveys and consultations with staff and Trade Unions;
 A partnership evaluation framework to enable partnerships to be identified, 

recorded and reported upon to assess their effectiveness.

Principle C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social 
and environmental benefits 

The long term nature and impact of many of local government’s responsibilities 
mean that it should define and plan outcomes and that these should be 
sustainable. Decisions should further the organisation’s purpose, contribute to 
intended benefits and outcomes, and remain within the limits of authority and 
resources. Input from all groups of stakeholders is vital to the success of this 
process and in balancing competing demands when determining priorities for 
the finite resources available.

What we do to achieve this

The Council’s City Plan sets out the vision and priorities for the Council, 
informed by the results of consultation with stakeholders. The City Plan has 
identified the following key themes:

 Stronger and Connected Communities
 A Prosperous City
 A Healthy and Active City
 A Heritage City for the 21st Century
 Sustaining and Improving our Assets.


The Council also has a series of policies that operate at a service level and 
allow the Council to plan and prioritise its resources whether for public facing 
or support services.

The Council has a suite of policies relating to capital investment strategies, 
capital asset management and acquisition and development of property to 

Page 25



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 8 of 14

guide investment decisions and maximise best use of resources to achieve 
sustainable outcomes. 

The Council consults on major changes to service delivery to ensure that 
stakeholders can influence the decisions on what benefits the Council should 
be seeking to obtain from those changes.

The Council contributes to consultations and development of plans of other 
partners affecting the city and its customers.

Principle D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes 

Local government achieves its intended outcomes by providing a mixture of 
legal, regulatory, and practical interventions. Determining the right mix of these 
courses of action is a critically important strategic choice that local government 
has to make to ensure intended outcomes are achieved. They need robust 
decision making mechanisms to ensure that their defined outcomes can be 
achieved in a way that provides the best trade-off between the various types of 
resource inputs while still enabling effective and efficient operations. Decisions 
made need to be reviewed continually to ensure that achievement of outcomes 
is optimised.

What we do to achieve this

 Through the annual budget setting process the Council’s officers and 
Members plan to resource the Council's aspirations and to assess and 
plan for any financial risks. There are arrangements in place for regular 
budget monitoring and the reporting of significant variances to senior 
management. 

 The annual business planning process is used to agree the priorities for 
the Council. This information enables members and the services 
contributing to the delivery of the plan to be clear about the priorities 
for the Council and assists in decisions about where resources should be 
focussed. 

 The Council works to maximise its resources by delivering services as 
efficiently as possible, working in partnership with others and using 
other providers where these are the best options. 

 The Council seeks expertise from outside the authority when it does not 
have the necessary skills in-house, making use of peer reviews and 
other mechanisms for ensuring challenge of Council services. The 
Council accesses support from the LGA and other sector partners and 
bodies. 

 The Council has a Performance Management Framework which sets out 

Page 26



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 9 of 14

the range of measures against which progress in delivering the 
Corporate Plan priorities will be measured. Service plans are produced 
annually which detail the planned actions to deliver the Council’s vision.

 Quarterly performance reports are produced and reported to the 
relevant Committee. The reports include performance against key 
performance indicators, progress in delivery of corporate projects and 
Value for Money measures.

 The Council ensures procurement practices are effective and seeks 
external funding where appropriate.

Principle E: Developing the organisation’s capacity, including the 
capability of its leadership and the individuals within it 

Local government needs appropriate structures and leadership, as well as 
people with the right skills, appropriate qualifications and mindset, to operate 
efficiently and effectively and achieve their intended outcomes within specified 
periods. A local government organisation must ensure that it has both the 
capacity to fulfil its own mandate and to make certain that there are policies in 
place to guarantee that its management has the operational capacity or the 
organisation as a whole. Because both individuals and the environment in which 
an organisation operates will change over time, there will be a continuous need 
to develop its capacity as well as the skills and experience of the leadership of 
individual staff members. Leadership in local government is strengthened by 
the participation of people of many different types of backgrounds, reflecting 
the structure and diversity of communities.

What we do to achieve this

The Council ensures that the necessary roles and responsibilities of the 
Council are identified and allocated so that it is clear who is accountable for 
the decisions that are made. The Council does this by:
 Electing a Leader of the Council, a Deputy Leader of the Council and the 

Chairs and Vice-chairs of individual committees with clearly defined roles 
and responsibilities.

 Clearly describing in the constitution the role of the Leader, the Deputy 
Leader, the Chairs and Vice-chairs of committees, The Mayor, the 
Managing Director and other statutory senior management 
appointments, and the roles and functions of all Councillors, full Council 
and individual committees.

 Agreeing a scheme of delegations to officers
 Annually appointing Committees to discharge the Council’s regulatory 

functions
 The Managing Director being responsible for all aspects of operational 

Page 27



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 10 of 14

management (Head of Paid Service)

The Council ensures that those charged with the governance of the Council 
have the skills, knowledge and experience they need to perform well. The 
Council does this by:
 Operating robust recruitment and selection processes;
 Cascading regular information to Members and Staff;
 Providing resources that support Member and Officer Development;
 Promoting schemes and supporting ongoing professional development;
 Personal Development Plans are developed as part of the Council’s 

Performance Development;
 Providing training to help Members understand their role on committees;
 Assessing personal development needs as part of the induction process 

for both Members and Officers;
 The Council supports a programme of Leadership Development for 

managers.

Principle F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal 
control and strong public financial management 

Local government needs to ensure that organisations and governance 
structures that it oversees have implemented, and can sustain, an effective 
performance management system that facilitates effective and efficient delivery 
of planned services. Risk management and internal control are important and 
integral parts of a performance management system and crucial to the 
achievement of outcomes. Risk should be considered and addressed as part of 
all decision making activities. A strong system of financial management is 
essential for the implementation of policies and the achievement of intended 
outcomes, as it will enforce financial discipline, strategic allocation of resources, 
efficient service delivery, and accountability. It is also essential that a culture 
and structure for scrutiny is in place as a key part of accountable decision 
making, policy making and review. A positive working culture that accepts, 
promotes and encourages constructive challenge is critical to successful 
scrutiny and successful delivery. Importantly, this culture does not happen 
automatically, it requires repeated public commitment from those in authority.

What we do to achieve this

The Council is transparent about how decisions are taken and recorded. The 
Council does this by:
 Ensuring that all decisions are made in public and recording those 

decisions and relevant information and making them available publicly 
(except where that information is exempt under the Access to 
Information Procedure Rules or determined as being confidential by 

Page 28



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 11 of 14

What we do to achieve this

Government or otherwise exempt by the Council);
 Having in place rules and procedures which govern how decisions are 

made;
 Publishing details of statutory and delegated responsibilities on the 

Council website as part of the Constitution;
The Council ensures that effective, transparent and accessible arrangements 
are in place for recording and dealing with complaints.
The Council ensures that appropriate legal, financial and other professional 
advice is always considered as part of the decision-making process and the 
Council will always observe both specific requirements of legislation and 
general responsibility by law.
Key CIPFA codes, such as the Code on a Prudential Framework for Local 
Authority Capital Finance and the Treasury Management Code, are complied 
with.
The Council operates a risk management approach that aids the 
achievement of its strategic objectives, supports its decision making 
processes, protects the Council’s reputation and other assets and is 
compliant with statutory and regulatory obligations. The Council annually 
reviews its risk management strategy and policy, which outlines the formal 
approach to identifying and managing risk.
The Council’s Constitution sets out how the Council operates, how decisions 
are made and the procedures which are followed to ensure that these are 
effective, transparent and accountable to local people and is reviewed and 
amended on an annual basis as required. The Officer Scheme of Delegation 
is reviewed in line with the review of the Council’s Constitution.
The Council has appointed the Corporate Director of Resources as Chief 
Financial Officer (CFO) and Section 151 Officer. The CFO is involved in all 
Corporate Management Team discussions, and reviews all reports to 
Committee which have financial implications. The CFO also provides an 
opinion under section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 on the reserves 
for the City Council, which Members consider when setting the budget.
The Council ensures the services it delivers are effective and meet the 
community’s needs by:
 Using results of consultation to inform the City Plan;
 Delivering services to meet local needs through the City Plan, and putting 

in place policies and processes to ensure that they operate effectively in 
practice;

 Recording and reviewing the number and type of complaints, average 
time to respond and the number of satisfied customers who have used 
this process. These reports can be found on the Council’s intranet and 
website;

 Producing quarterly financial monitoring and performance management 
reports. 

Page 29



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 12 of 14

What we do to achieve this

 The Council has an Audit and Governance Committee with responsibility 
for monitoring and reviewing the risk, control and governance processes 
and associated assurance processes to ensure internal control systems 
are effective and that policies and practices are in compliance with 
statutory and other regulations and guidance

Principle G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting 
and audit to deliver effective accountability 

Accountability is about ensuring that those making decisions and delivering 
services are answerable for them. Effective accountability is concerned not only 
with reporting on actions completed, but also ensuring that stakeholders are 
able to understand and respond as the organisation plans and carries out its 
activities in a transparent manner. Both internal and external audit contribute 
to effective accountability.

What we do to achieve this

 The Council makes sure members of the public have access to 
information about the workings of the Council. It makes clear what 
information is routinely published through its Freedom of Information 
Publication scheme and responds promptly to requests for information. 

 Each year the Council publishes an Annual Governance Statement and 
Statement of Accounts giving information on the authority's vision, 
strategy, performance, future plans and financial statements. 

 Shared services arrangements with other local authorities or partners 
document their governance arrangements, which are clear, open and 
accountable. 

 The Council maintains an independent Internal Audit function, with a 
risk-based annual audit plan, designed to test regularly that the 
Council’s policies and processes operate in practice and that the Council 
complies with legislation and good practice. 

 The Head of Internal Audit produces an annual opinion on the Council’s 
internal control environment and the risk management framework to 
meet the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. 

 The Head of Internal Audit Opinion is used to inform an Annual 
Governance Statement and this is signed off by the Managing Director 
and Leader of the Council. 

 The Council also agrees an annual work plan with its External Auditors 
to test the Council’s response to major legislation and the soundness of 

Page 30



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 13 of 14

its financial and governance processes. 

 Recommendations arising from internal and external audit and 
inspection processes are used to inform future decision-making. 

 The Council uses an Independent Remuneration Panel to give advice on 
payments for Members and considers their advice when setting the 
Members’ Allowance Scheme. The Panel operates in an open and 
transparent manner, making their agendas, reports and minutes 
available to the public. 

 The Members’ Allowance Scheme is also made available to the public 
and on the Council’s website and the scheme is reviewed annually.

3 MONITORING AND REVIEW

The Council has two Committees that are responsible for monitoring and reviewing the 
various aspects of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements.

The Audit and Governance Committee is a committee of the Council and is responsible 
for the Council’s arrangements relating to;

 Monitoring and reviewing the risk, control and governance processes and 
associated assurance processes to ensure internal control systems are effective 
and that policies and practices are in compliance with statutory and other 
regulations and guidance;

 External Audit
 Internal Audit
 Risk Management
 Making recommendations concerning relevant governance aspects of the 

Constitution;
 Reviewing the effectiveness of Internal Audit.

The Standards Committee has responsibility for promoting high ethical standards 
across the Council, overview of the Member and Officer Codes and other relevant 
protocols together with the Council’s complaints handling regime.

The two Committees will ensure that the Council’s governance arrangements are kept 
under continual review through:

 Reports prepared by officers with responsibility for aspects of this Code;
 The work on Internal Audit;
 External Audit opinion;
 Other review agencies and Inspectorates.

Page 31



Local Code of Corporate Governance Page 14 of 14

3.1 The Annual Governance Statement

Each Year the Council will publish a Governance Statement. This process is managed 
by the Corporate Governance Board and will provide an overall assessment of the 
Council’s corporate governance arrangements and an appraisal of the key controls in 
place to manage the Council’s principal governance risks, together with proposed 
improvements that will be made. The statement will also provide details of where 
improvements need to be made in accordance with the Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015.

The Annual Governance Statement will be published as part of the Council’s Annual 
Statement of Accounts and will be audited by our External Auditors.

3.2 Annual Corporate Governance Action Plan

Each Year the Audit and Governance Committee will approve an action plan of specific 
corporate governance improvements to be delivered by the Council’s various 
Committees and officer governance boards. The Audit and Governance Committee will 
seek assurance from the Council’s Monitoring Officer and Corporate Governance Board 
throughout the year that the action plan is on target to be delivered. Corporate 
governance improvements delivered by the Council will be reported through the 
Annual Governance Statement process.

4 Related Documents

 CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 

 Annual Governance Statement 

 Corporate Governance Annual Action Plan

Page 32



Corporate Governance Action Plan 2019-2020

CIPFA Principle Specific focus for 2019-20 Action Timescales Officer lead Governance oversight 
body

A: Behaving with 
integrity, 
demonstrating 
strong 
commitment to 
ethical values, 
and respecting 
the rule of law

Ensure that Council’s  
overarching legal 
duties are 
embedded into daily 
service delivery

“Mystery shopping” 
exercise to sample 
compliance with key 
legal duties (GDPR, 
Equality Act, best 
value, Modern 
Slavery, 
transparency duties, 
consultation etc)

Report back result 
of first exercise 
December 2019

Sian Stroud Corporate 
Governance Board

B: Ensuring 
openness and 
comprehensive 
stakeholder 
engagements

Ensure that Council 
has clearly identified 
its stakeholder and 
mapped resource to 
engage at the right 
levels

Complete and 
implement the 
Stakeholder 
Management Plan

Embed the 
Stakeholder 
Management Plan 
into daily service 
delivery March 
2020. Provide 
assurance via 
Internal Audit.

David Sutton Corporate 
Leadership Team

C: Defining 
outcomes in 
terms of 
sustainable 
economic, social 
and 
environmental 
benefits

Ensure that 
approach to 
procurement reflects 
the Council’s 
spending power in 
the local economy 
while also securing 
best value and 
meeting Council 
objectives

Develop overarching 
Procurement 
Strategy to 
complement the 
existing 
Procurement Code

Procurement 
Strategy 
approved by 
Policy & 
Resources 
Committee March 
2020

Mark Baldwin Policy & Resources 
Committee

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 5
A

ppendix 3



Corporate Governance Action Plan 2019-2020

D: Determining 
the interventions 
necessary to 
optimise the 
achievement of 
the intended 
outcomes

Ensure that Council 
appointments to 
outside bodies are 
given clear terms of 
remit so that Council 
objectives can be 
achieved

Develop a toolkit for 
Members and 
Officers on Outside 
Bodies to ensure 
that Council 
influence is 
maximised and 
appointees are clear 
on role, 
responsibilities and 
fiduciary and legal 
duties. 

Toolkit approved 
by Standards 
Committee March 
2020

Sian Stroud Standards 
Committee

E: Developing 
the Council’s 
capacity, 
including the 
capability of its 
leadership and 
the individuals 
within it

Ensure that Council 
training programmes 
promote corporate 
governance 
standards

Refresh Member 
training programme 
to include training 
on Standards, 
Governance & 
Response to Civil 
Emergencies

Deliver officer 
training on effective 
report writing 

Develop and 
deliver training 
programmes 
throughout 
2019/2020

Sian Stroud Standards 
Committee

P
age 34



Corporate Governance Action Plan 2019-2020

F: Managing 
risks and 
performance 
through robust 
internal control 
and strong public 
financial 
management

Ensure that 
premises health and 
safety risks are fully 
managed now that 
Property Services 
function has come 
back in house 

Develop policy 
framework to 
manage premises 
risk and compliance 

Policy framework 
approved by 
Policy & 
Resources 
Committee March 
2020

Kevin Moore Policy & Resources 
Committee

G: Implementing 
good practices in 
transparency, 
reporting and 
audit to deliver 
effective 
accountability

Ensure that draft 
Committee reports 
include timely and   
appropriate 
consultation and 
that published 
reports are fully 
accessible 
electronically

Roll out full 
functionality of the 
Modern.Gov 
software giving 
electronic access to 
internal drafts of 
reports and an app 
for access to 
published reports

Embed software 
and new ways of 
working 
embedded by 
March 2020

Sian Stroud Corporate 
Leadership Team

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 29th July 2019

Report of: Corporate Director - Finance and Resources

Subject: CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT Q4 – 2018/19

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee notes the Corporate Risk Management Report.

2. Background

2.1 In accordance with the Council’s governance arrangements and to ensure 
appropriate political oversight, risk management is reported annually to the Audit 
and Governance Committee for assurance of the risk management process.

2.2 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy makes clear the Council’s risk management 
objectives, approach, responsibilities and procedures. It outlines the Council’s risk 
appetite as well as tolerance levels and  incorporates a 3 x 3 risk matrix with scoring 
levels from 1 (lowest risk) to 9 (highest risk).

2.3 As stated in the Council’s Risk Management Strategy, risk owners are required to 
review risks on a quarterly basis. The information included in the attached risk 
management report details the progress made against the corporate risks for quarter 
four, the period of January – March 2019.

3. Information 

3.1 At the conclusion of quarter four there are 13 risks on the corporate Risk Register. 

3.2 One risk has been rated as unacceptable (red), three are rated as acceptable and 
nine are rated tolerable (green).

3.3 The following risks, CRK-009 Transformation Programme and CRK-015 Place 
Partnership Ltd (PPL) were closed at the conclusion of the quarter.

3.4 A detailed breakdown of the all corporate risks, including their status, mitigating 
actions and quarterly update are outlined overleaf.

Ward(s): All Wards
Contact Officer: William Wade, Transformation & Performance Officer

Tel: 01905 722104   william.wade@worcester.gov.uk 
Background Papers: Risk Management Strategy
 

Page 37 Agenda Item 6

mailto:william.wade@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Corporate Risk Management Report – 
Quarter Four 2018/19

Corporate Risk Register

 

 Risk Code Risk Title Current Risk Score Trend Indicator

CRK-002 City Plan Priorities - Resources 3

CRK-003 Cultural Change 5

CRK-004 Development Plan 3

CRK-005 Local Government Funding 7

CRK-006 Investment Portfolio 2

CRK-007 Business Rates Local Retention 2

CRK-008 Civil Emergency 3

CRK-011 ICT Security 6

CRK-012 ICT Systems 3

CRK-014 Shared Services 3

CRK-016 Health and Safety 6

CRK-017 Safeguarding 3

CRK-018 Asset Maintenance 3

Risks Closed During Q4 2018/19

CRK-009 Transformation Programme 3

CRK-015 Place Partnership Ltd (PPL) 1

 

Page 39 Agenda Item 6
Appendix 1



2

CRK-002 City Plan Priorities - Resources
Insufficient resources and skills gap to deliver City Plan Priorities.
Managed By: Shane Flynn
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Unable to deliver and implement our vision, 
mission and City Plan with significant impact on the 
shape of the City, its residents and council staff. 
• Reputational damage with stakeholders and the 
public - internally and externally. 
• Reduced local influence as a public sector 
organisation and place shaper 
• Limited buy in from staff on Business as Usual or 
future work.  

      

Secure increased/additional income to support delivery of prioritiesMitigating 
Actions Engage specialist support to deploy as needed
      

Latest Note
No change from Q3. The year end outturn is not expected to change substantially from the Q3 forecast 
which means that the shortfall on the City Plan Fund will remain until at NHB is received for 2020/21. 
This is not a concern as not all City Plan projects will be delivered in this financial year. 

Page 40



3

CRK-003 Cultural Change
Failure to embed the cultural change around continuous improvement and 'excellence'.
Managed By: David Sutton
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Reputation damage - internally and externally. 
• Reduced morale and limited buy in from staff on 
future programs and projects. 
• Declined perception of organisational 
management.  

      

Programme of Staff Conferences, Monthly Corporate 'Core Briefs', update articles via In 
The Know.

Review the project management framework to ensure it is fit for purpose

Approval and implementation of revised procurement code

Manage a programme of interventions aimed improving employee engagement through 
cultural change interventions.

Produce and adopt a strategy that sets out the vision for attracting, developing, 
retaining and recognising excellent people.

Design and test a new PDR process Which will deliver an assessment of each 
employee’s contribution and potential and provide a link between PDR outcomes and 
reward.  To be trialled with senior managers in 18/19 with a view to rolling out to all 
employees in 19/20.

Mitigating 
Actions

To embed the Achieving Excellence continuous improvement approach across the 
council

      

Latest Note
No change from previous period.

Delivery of Our People Strategy will continue to mitigate this risk.

Page 41



4

CRK-004 Development Plan
An up-to-date development plan is a statutory requirement for all local planning authorities. To ensure 
the Council has an up-to-date plan the south Worcestershire authorities will need to begin a review of 
the SWDP in January 2018, with a view to adopting the plan in 2022/23.
Managed By: Philippa Smith
Approach: Tolerate  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Reputational damage - DCLG will intervene and 
commission a third party to produce a plan for the 
City. 
• The City will not meet its housing or employment 
growth targets. 
• Planning permissions will be won on appeal. 
• Significant legal and appeal costs could be 
incurred.  

      

Appointment of an additional Planning Policy OfficerMitigating 
Actions Review the plan to allocate sites for new development up until 2041.
      

Latest Note
The South Worcestershire Development Plan Review is being progressed in accordance with the Local 
Development Scheme timetable.  The Issues and Options consultation took place between 5th 
November and 17th December 2018 and work is progressing towards the Preferred Options 
consultation which is scheduled for late 2019. 

Page 42



5

CRK-005 Local Government Funding
There is a risk of reduced government funding following the outcome of the Government's 'Fairer 
Funding Formula' review.
Managed By: Shane Flynn
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Reduced ability to deliver current service levels 
across the Council  

      

Ensure that there are sufficient reserves to mitigate funding reductions in the short 
term

Manage planned reductions in New Homes Bonus
Mitigating 

Actions
Establish earmarked risk reserves

      

Latest Note
The risk score was increased at Q3 and remains unchanged. Risk reserves have been increased to help 
manage the transition but the full impact will not be known until autumn 2019.

Page 43



6

CRK-006 Investment Portfolio
Macro-economic financial crisis that impacts on the Council's investment portfolio.
Managed By: Shane Flynn
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Significant financial loss 
• Reputational damage nationally, with stakeholders 
and the public - internally and externally. 
• Impact on service delivery.  

      

Mitigating 
Actions

Management of investments in line with risk principles of liquidity, security and income

      

Latest Note
The risk score was increased at Q3 and macro-economic indicators continue to suggest that retail, in 
particular, is depressed. Kings Court purchase has been completed and is non-retail as well as having 
another primary objective, in line with the Commercial Strategy.

Page 44



7

CRK-007 Business Rates Local Retention
Risk of large employer leaving the City
Managed By: Shane Flynn
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Significant financial loss 
• Reputational damage nationally, with stakeholders 
and the public - internally and externally. 
• Impact on service delivery.  

      

Participate in 100% retention pilotMitigating 
Actions Focus on current businesses that present greatest income
      

Latest Note
Risk increased in respect of likelihood owing to ongoing concerns about the retail sector. The Council 
could be affected particularly by closure of Debenhams/House of Frazer at Crowngate.  

Page 45



8

CRK-008 Civil Emergency
If we are unable to respond effectively in the event of a major civil emergency, i.e. flooding, flu 
pandemic
Managed By: David Sutton
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Significant financial loss 
• Significant legal costs 
• Reputational damage nationally, with stakeholders 
and the public - internally and externally. 
• Impact on service delivery.  

      

Introduction to Civil Contingencies 2 day course

Training provided by County colleagues

County carrying out review of procedures and resource under SLA

Review of shared service arrangements

Mitigating 
Actions

In addition to call out tests, undertake a desktop exercise (or live event)
      

Latest Note
Mitigating actions are now embedded as business as usual working with partners and reviewing plans

Page 46



9

CRK-011 ICT Security
If we are unable to control and secure ICT systems and data against unauthorised access including 
cyber crime.
Managed By: David Sutton
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Significant financial loss and sanctions/fines 
• Significant legal costs 
• Reputational damage nationally, with stakeholders 
and the public - internally and externally.  

      

PSN ITCHC (health check) carried out by independent body

Action plan as agreed with shared service

Review of existing policy and adoption of revised policy

Security engineer to focus on all aspects of ICT Security.

Mitigating 
Actions

Exercise to ensure response to an ICT incident is robust.
      

Latest Note
No change from previous period

Systems are adequately protected. Whilst the likelihood of an attack remains high the likelihood of this 
being successful is low.

ICT security is regularly monitored by shared service management board and appropriate staff 
resources have been allocated specifically to ICT security.

Officers are participating in MHCLG led cyber security programme and an action plan is being 
developed to further enhance security.

Page 47



10

CRK-012 ICT Systems
If there is not continuous availability of critical IT systems
Managed By: David Sutton
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Significant financial loss 
• Significant legal costs 
• Reputational damage with stakeholders and the 
public - internally and externally. 
• Impact on service delivery.  

      

Rolling review of ICT Business Continuity PlanMitigating 
Actions Review of ICT implications within the Council wide business continuity arrangements.
      

Latest Note
Enhancements to systems have been implemented that provide for a 24 hour recovery in the event of 
loss of the Pershore data centre through a duplicate data centre at Malvern.

On going work on cyber security also mitigates this risk by reducing.

The likelihood is assessed as that of a successful cyber attack or loss of data centre due to major 
event such as a fire, and therefore is assessed as low.

Impact is mitigated by recovery procedures and is now reduced to medium.

Page 48



11

CRK-014 Shared Services
If we fail to monitor/ manage where applicable all shared services which leads to a significant service 
failure 
Managed By: David Sutton
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Significant financial loss and sanctions/fines. 
Significant legal costs 
• Reputational damage nationally, with stakeholders 
and the public - internally and externally. 
• Impact on service delivery.  

      

Recognise shared services as shared delivery vehicles, not as third party contractors

Transfer responsibility for Worcester Museum and Art Gallery to City Council

Develop an ICT strategy to ensure WCC needs line up with shared service activities
Mitigating 

Actions
Review of major contracts and shared services

      

Latest Note
No change from previous period.

Current arrangements for shared services have established governance arrangements as reported to 
Policy & Resources Committee.

The likelihood of service failure remains low.

Page 49



12

CRK-016 Health and Safety
Major Health and Safety incident -e.g. legionella out break, death/personal injury at work, or member 
of the public.
Managed By: Shane Flynn
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Loss of life 
• Criminal proceedings 
• Significant financial loss and sanctions/fines 
• Significant legal costs 
• Reputational damage nationally, with stakeholders 
and the public - internally and externally. 
• Impact on service delivery.  

      

Mitigating 
Actions

The creation of accident/incident recording systems and a policy/procedure framework 
throughout the City operations and staff which is accredited to OHAS 18001 standard.

      

Latest Note
No change in relative likelihood of an incident occurring as the priority areas for corporate H & S input 
and advice have been identified and resourcing for this has been agreed. Recruitment of a full time 
post holder is underway.

Page 50



13

CRK-017 Safeguarding
Major Safeguarding incident relating to one of the Council's services/contracts
Managed By: Nina Warrington
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Criminal proceedings 
• Significant financial loss and sanctions/fines 
• Significant legal costs 
• Reputational damage nationally, with stakeholders 
and the public - internally and externally.  

      

Delivery of the Safeguarding Action PlanMitigating 
Actions Review of major contracts and shared services
      

Latest Note
The Safeguarding Group continues to meet on a regular basis.  Additional staff have chosen to become 
Safeguarding Advisors following a recruitment drive.  This has provided coverage across all city council 
sites - MAG's, Guildhall and Sixways. Training is in progress for the new Advisors with a refresher for 
existing staff.  Safeguarding training by all employees was a mandatory requirement to be completed 
by the end of March 2019.  Any staff who have not completed will be flagged and monitored by 
managers in the bi annual PDR meetings. The improvement actions identified by the Section 11 
Safeguarding Self Assessment are being monitored by the WSCB. These are in progress and will 
ensure all staff who are involved in recruitment are fully aware of safeguarding and ensure recruitment 
is undertaken in the correct way.

Page 51



14

CRK-018 Asset Maintenance
If the Council fail to conduct relevant assessments and maintain owned assets and buildings
Managed By: Shane Flynn
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Criminal proceedings 
• Significant financial loss and sanctions/fines 
• Significant legal costs 
• Reputational damage nationally, with stakeholders 
and the public - internally and externally.  

      

Identify and publish the Council's strategic aims regarding assets and define the 
approach to managing theseMitigating 

Actions
To agree metrics for identifying testing regimes and monitoring progress against them

      

Latest Note
No change in assessment at this stage. The development of an Asset Management strategy is due to 
be undertaken by the Property & Asset Manager in 2019/20. This will form the basis for a new risk 
assessment.

Page 52



15

Risks Closed During Quarter Four – 2018/19

CRK-009 Transformation Programme
If we do not deliver the Transformation Programme within the required timeframes.
Managed By: David Sutton
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Unable to deliver a balanced budget. 
• Reduced reserves. 
• Impact on service delivery 
• Reputational damage with stakeholders and the 
public - internally and externally. 
• Loss of staff and key skills  

      

Robust reporting arrangements to ensure political oversight.Mitigating 
Actions Transformation Programme
      

Latest Note
Assumptions and projections regarding delivery of Transformation Programme projects have been built 
into the budget and MTFP under the Income and Efficiencies plan. Likelihood has been reduced to low.

This risk will be closed as the overall Transformation Programme has been discontinued.

Page 53



16

CRK-015 Place Partnership Ltd (PPL)
If the commercial/financial service approach of PPL does not work/suit the needs of the City Council, 
the Council would need to seek alternative arrangements, such as placing all its property work with 
another/other consultants OR re-creating an internal Property Services team.
Managed By: Shane Flynn
Approach: Treat  

      

Original Risk 
Score

Current Risk 
Score

Trend 
Indicator Risk Consequence

• Increased financial costs 
• Reputational Damage  

      

Mitigating 
Actions

Develop options for alternative approaches to Facilities Management and strategic 
asset management

      

Latest Note
The in-house Property and Asset Management Team has been established. This risk can be deleted 
from the register.

Page 54



17

Service Risk Overview Summary

Number and status of all service risks
Red 5

Amber 30
Green 30

  

Communications - Service Risk Register

Corporate Policy & Strategy - Service Risk Register

Community Services - Service Risk Register

Economic Development and Planning - Service Risk Register

Financial Services - Service Risk Register

Governance - Service Risk Register

Internal Audit - Service Risk Register

Page 55



18

  

Museums Service Risk Register

Operations - Service Risk Register

Property and Assets - Service Risk Register

People Services - Service Risk Register

Strategic Housing - Service Risk Register

Page 56



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee, 29th July 2019

Report of: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service, Worcestershire 
Internal Audit Shared Service

Subject:   INTERNAL AUDIT EXTERNAL ASSESSMENT PROGRESS REPORT

1. Recommendation

1.1 The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service recommends that the 
report is noted.

2. Background

2.1 To provide an update from the Head of Internal Audit Shared Service in 
regard to the implementation progress made against the Internal Audit 
External Assessment that took place during the 2017/2018 financial year.   
The involvement of Members in progress monitoring is considered to be an 
important facet of good corporate governance, contributing to the internal 
control assurance given in the Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

2.2 Tilia Solutions were appointed for the Worcestershire Internal Audit 
Shared Service Assessment. The review was undertaken by the 
independent assessor during early October 2017 and a report was 
produced identifying areas which would enhance the Internal Audit Service 
provision overall.  The final report was presented on the 20th October 
2017. The report was presented to the Client Officer Group during 
November 2017.  

2.3 A progress report was brought before Committee for information 
approximately 12 months ago with the understanding that regular 
reporting would be undertaken until the areas identified were satisfactorily 
completed.

  
External Assessment.

2.4 The Council is required under Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 to “undertake an adequate and effective internal audit 
of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in 
accordance with the proper practices in relation to internal control”.

2.5 Although not a statutory requirement all Internal Audit Services are 
obliged to comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as 
amended and undergo an independent external assessment every 5 years 
to ensure compliance with the Standards.

Page 57 Agenda Item 8



Progress to June 2019.

2.8 The action plan was broken down into three elements; recommendations, 
compliance and suggestions.  A summary of these can be found in 
Appendix A.  This shows that all action points raised by the external 
assessment have now been addressed. All improvements outlined in the 
summary will be maintained until the next assessment, which is due in 
2021/22, although WIASS will continue to seek ongoing improvement 
though the Client Officer Group and its service planning processes. 

Ward(s): N/A
Contact Officer: Andy Bromage. 
Telephone: 01905 722051  
Email: andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: Tilia Solutions Assessment Report

Page 58



APPENDIX A

Action Plan and Position as at June 2019
Key:
Completed
Ongoing
Not Started 

Recommendations:

No. Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation Date

Action Taken Position 
June 2019

R1 Include a requirement in each 
anti-fraud and corruption policy 
to inform the HIASS of all 
suspected frauds

Anti-fraud and 
corruption policies to 
be updated as 
appropriate. Request 
to be made to update 
policies.

By Dec 2017 All partners have been contacted in 
regard to current policies.  Actions are 
dependant on position and planned 
updates.  Policies mainly require a 
small tweak of the current wording to 
satisfy this recommendation but no 
immediate risk presenting itself.  
Partners will address this issue fully 
when update cycles permit.

R2 Safeguards, including 
independent audit 
arrangements, should be put in 
place to manage audit’s 
independence and objectivity 
where they carry out non-audit 
activities and these should be 

Independence is 
managed closely 
within the team e.g. 
different people 
working on areas and 
not auditing those 
areas, annual conflict 

Circa June 2018.  
Ongoing - to be 
included in the 
annual reporting 
cycle for all Partners.

Safeguarding, independence and 
integrity included in the 2018 Charter

P
age 59



No. Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation Date

Action Taken Position 
June 2019

discussed with and approved by 
the relevant audit committees. 
They should be included in the 
Audit Charter

of interest checks, 
quality assurance, 
quality assurance in 
process and Team 
Leader & HIA 
consideration. 
Charter will be 
updated and 
discussion can take 
place with Cttee on 
an annual basis with 
safeguards 
specifically identified.

R3 Ensure fraud risks are 
considered more extensively in 
planning audits and give audit 
staff support to enable them to 
do this 

The planning area of 
audit work as well as 
the annual plan was 
identified as an area 
that required 
transforming in May 
2017 and a paper was 
placed before COG 
setting out how 
WIASS was to 
improve this. WIASS 
will indicate clearly 
the potential fraud 
risks and include in 
the brief. There will 

Apr-18 November 2017
(https://www.actionfraud.police.uk/a-
z_of_fraud ) advised to all Auditors 
November 2017 via email so that full 
use can be made of it and the benefits 
it can provide going forwards.   

February 2018 
Team Meeting advised that expected 
to use website and other resource as 
part of the planning element so there 
is more extensive consideration of 
this aspect in all the reviews 
undertaken.  Has become an intrinsic 
part of the brief.

P
age 60



No. Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation Date

Action Taken Position 
June 2019

also be a greater 
emphasis on risk 
focus.

Workshops 
undertaken re. 
Service 
transformation 
during 2017 along 
with methodology 
impact therefore part 
of consideration.   

R4 In discussion with the auditee, 
broaden individual audit 
planning to cover the matters 
indicated and record the 
relevant matters on the audit 
brief:
o   Achievement of the 
organisation’s strategic 
objectives
o   Strategies and objectives of 
the activity under review
o   Reliability and integrity of 
financial and operational 
information 
o   Risks to the activity under 
review

The planning area of 
audit work as well as 
the annual plan was 
identified as an area 
that required 
transforming in May 
2017 and a paper was 
placed before COG 
setting out how 
WIASS was planning 
to improve this. 
WIASS looked at 
broadening the audit 
brief to make it more 
succinct and linked in 
to corporate 

Circa June 2018 November 2017 onwards: 
Completely new approach adopted 
for annual planning.  2018/19 
planning went through SMT with a 
key emphasis on risk and linkage to 
corporate priorities /promises as well 
as corporate and service risk registers 
as well as service plans.  Plans signed 
off at SMT level for all Partners with 
HIASS in attendance to present the 
plan(s).  This methodology continues 
to be used. 
February 2018 onwards: 
February 2018 Team Meeting 
introduced the revised methodology 
and talked through the annual plan 

P
age 61



No. Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation Date

Action Taken Position 
June 2019

o   Risk management 
arrangements 
Governance arrangements for: 
o   Making strategic and 
operational decisions 
o   Overseeing risk management 
and control 
o   Promoting appropriate ethics 
and values 
o   Ensuring effective 
organisational performance 
management and accountability 
o   Communicating risk and 
control information to 
appropriate areas of the 
organisation
o   Effectiveness and efficiency 
of operations and programmes 
o   Safeguarding of assets
o   Compliance with laws, 
regulations, policies, procedures 
and contracts
o   Potential errors and non-
compliance
o   Opportunities for value for 
money and to make 
improvements in the activity’s 
processes.

priorities and 
strategic objectives. A 
greater emphasis on 
risk focus was also to 
be included. During 
2017 workshops held 
re. Service 
transformation and 
methodology impact 
therefore part of 
consideration.   

approach.  Team expected to deploy 
new method of working, use 
methodology and deliver audits on 
time and within budget as the process 
has been significantly streamlined 
without losing the integrity of the 
working papers.
01 June 2018 onwards: 
Revised methodology key point of 
discussion on Team Meeting agenda 
to review how revision is working, and 
to identify any further points for 
consideration and development.  
Development of methodology has 
continued through team discussion 
and feedback from Partner's and will 
continue to do so.  New methodology 
is now embedded and has been used 
for 12 months.
May 2019:
Methodology continues to evolve. 

P
age 62



No. Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation Date

Action Taken Position 
June 2019

R5 Undertake self-assessments 
against the LGAN and PSIAS

To be undertaken 
annually. To 
commence at the end 
of 2018/19.

Self Assessment 
towards end of 
2018/19 after 
transformation has 
taken place.
Diarised for early 
February 2019 with 
reporting to be 
included as part of 
the annual report 
cycle for all Partners.

Self assessment completed April 2019.

Plan to evidence them as the new 
years documents emerge and others 
will be checked for continuing 
relevance.  Updates to text and 
hyperlinks made on an ongoing basis 
with self assessment completed 
annually.

Links to R6

R6 Ensure that the results of self-
assessments against PSIAS are 
reported to audit committees 
and CoG, together with the 
action planned so that these 
bodies can monitor progress

Self-assessment 
results to be reported 
to COG and Cttee as 
part of annual 
reporting. To 
commence at the end 
of 2018/19 financial 
year and for 
reporting 2019/20.

Circa July 2019 
To be included as part 
of the annual report 
cycle and overall 
assurance provision 
to those in 
governance of the 
integrity of WIASS as 
a service.

Self assessment completed April 2019.

Self assessment completed on an 
evidence based approach, and to be 
reported as part of the annual 
reporting cycle for 2018/19.

Links to R5

R7 Ensure audit plans are driven by 
each client’s strategic objectives 
and priorities and refer to all the 
required areas

See recommendation 
response at 4.

 April 2018 onwards Completed as part of the 2018/19 
planning process; direct links 
established between corporate risk 
register, service risk register and 
Corporate Strategies.  Links included 

P
age 63

file:///C:/Users/abromage/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Self%20Assessment/Standard%20Internal%20Assessment%20and%20Action%20Plan%202018.xlsx


No. Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation Date

Action Taken Position 
June 2019

in the plan for transparency.  
Paragraph included in committee 
reports as to the process followed in 
the formulation of the plan and the 
resource requirements.

R8 The HoIASS should have regular 
meetings with senior 
management teams to consult 
on items for inclusion in the 
annual plan, activities against 
the plan, any significant issues 
(fraud, risks, governance, etc.) 
that may have wider relevance 
and year-end outcomes

Although HoIASS has 
engaged in the past 
in regard to the 
annual plans with 
Head of Service, 
s151’s, arrangements 
to attend Senior 
Management Team 
meetings as part of 
the process will be 
arranged.

Immediate action i.e. 
for 18/19 Plan and 
ongoing.

Established that HoIASS now regularly 
attending SMT or equivalent at 
Partner organisations.

R9 Include examination of ethical 
issues in all relevant audits, 
bringing this work together at 
the year end to form an opinion 
on ethical activities

To become part of 
the brief and then 
report outcomes in 
annual report.  

During 2018/19 & 
circa June 2019 
opinions.

Culture and Ethics\Auditing Culture 
and Ethics.docx

Embedded in the working papers of 
the reviews.

R10 Include work on IT governance 
in the audit plan, buying in 
expertise if necessary

To seek assurance on 
this from other work 
undertaken within IT 
(i.e. third-party 
assurances), along 
with external audit 
work and consider 

Nov 17 COG. Discussed at November 2017 COG.  
Assurance from existing arrangements 
e.g. ethical hacking, etc, but audit 
budgets to be included in the 18/19 
plans for non technical audit work.

P
age 64

file:///C:/Users/abromage/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Culture%20and%20Ethics/Auditing%20Culture%20and%20Ethics.docx
file:///C:/Users/abromage/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/Culture%20and%20Ethics/Auditing%20Culture%20and%20Ethics.docx


No. Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation Date

Action Taken Position 
June 2019

whether it is 
sufficient. Buying in a 
resource will have 
resource 
implications.

R11 Finalise the Place Partnership 
agreement as a matter of 
urgency

Agreed.  November 
2017 with WCC Legal 
who are continuing 
to work on 
Agreement.

Draft to be available 
w/c 13/11/17 for PPL 
consideration.    
Finalisation circa end 
of December 2017.

Contract retendered during 2018/19 
therefore events overtook this action.  
No further requirement/action to be 
taken in regard to this 
recommendation.

R12 Combine the current planning 
documents and broaden them 
to create a work programme 
specifying the tests to be 
undertaken. Ensure that the 
work programme is approved 
before testing starts

Currently holding 
workshops re. Service 
transformation and 
methodology impact 
therefore part of 
consideration. This 
directly links with R3 
and R4.   

July 2019. Being 
worked on by Team 
Leader to combine 
working documents 
to simplify the 
arrangements.  

New methodology introduced April 
2018 and includes planning and 
testing as a combined document.  
Implemented for 2018/19 audit 
review .  Development continuing 
through feedback and focussed 
training sessions at team meetings.  
Continuing the development of the 
methodology to ensure it remains fit 
for purpose. Sign off of planning 
discussed at team meeting ready to 
deploy Q2 re. 2019/20 reviews.

R13 Address the reasons for the 
lengthy delays in finalising 
reports, incentivising auditees 
to respond promptly

Delay can be due to 
‘good cause’ and will 
be managed 
accordingly to 
circumstances. 
Where there is 

Immediate action Continuing to monitor and work with 
Partner's as there remain examples of 
undue delay in some areas. 
Appropriate escalating processes in 
place and Partners are actively 
encouraging 10 day turnaround. 

P
age 65



No. Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation Date

Action Taken Position 
June 2019

unjustified and undue 
delay then escalation 
to be instigated using 
the senior 
management team at 
the Partners. 

R14 The annual audit opinion should 
be succinct and stand out. It 
should cover risk management, 
controls and governance. If no 
conclusion can be drawn on a 
specific area, then that should 
be identified. The form of the 
opinion should be discussed and 
agreed with audit committees 
and senior management

The current annual 
audit opinion, along 
with other Audit 
Cttee reports are 
shared with senior 
management teams 
as part of the 
reporting process. 
However, format to 
be changed to give 
more emphasis and 
clarity in regard to 
the opinion and 
outcomes.   

Circa June 2018. To 
be included in the 
annual reporting 
cycle for all Partners.

2017/18 Audit Opinion format was 
changed to provide better clarity and 
reported outcomes.  Continual 
evolution to date. 

end

P
age 66



Compliance:

No Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

C1 Include the mandatory mission 
statement in the Charter

To include in the Charter 
to achieve full 
compliance.  

By April 2018 Internal Audit Charter was revised 
and placed before the Partner 
Committees for approval 
September/October 2018 with 
regular updates since.

C2 Include, as a minimum, a reference 
to the Seven Principles in one of the 
key audit documents. Ideally, refer 
to all seven principles and what they 
mean in an audit context

To include in the Charter 
to achieve full 
compliance.  

By April 2018 Internal Audit Charter has been 
revised and was placed before the 
Partner Committees for approval 
September/October 2018 with 
regular updates since. 

C3 Include a reference to assurance 
provided to parties outside the 
partnership in the Charter

To include in the Charter 
to achieve full 
compliance.  

By April 2018 Internal Audit Charter has been 
revised and was placed before the 
Partner Committees for approval 
September/October 2018 with 
regular updates since.

C4 Include information about the Core 
Principles in the Charter, including 
how audit delivers against them

To include in the Charter 
to achieve full 
compliance

By April 2018 Internal Audit Charter has been 
revised and was placed before the 
Partner Committees for approval 
September/October 2018 with 
regular updates since.

P
age 67



No Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

C5 Include a positive confirmation of 
audit’s independence in the annual 
audit reports

Although already 
included this will be 
given more emphasis in 
the annual reports.

Circa June 2018. 
To be included 
in the annual 
reporting cycle 
for all Partners.

Included initially in annual report 
2018 and continuing.  Extended to 
progress reports as well to 
emphasise independence.

C6 Develop an over-arching Quality 
Assurance and Improvement 
Programme (QAIP) strategy to cover 
quality assurance activities, 
including how often, who is involved 
and their scope. 

Adopt PSIAS as the 
standard WIASS wish to 
work to as a Service. 
Develop a QAIP strategy 
to indicate quality 
assurance activity. 

By June 2018 QAIP draft created July 18 but 
further development was ongoing 
for completion by July 2019. QAIP 
agreed as part of the self assessment 
April 2019 and will be used as an 
element of the Service Development 
Plan.

C7 Ensure audit plans are driven by 
each client’s strategic objectives and 
priorities and refer to all the 
required areas:

The need to produce an annual 
opinion

Links to an assurance framework 
and other assurance providers 

How the service will be developed 

The annual plan was 
identified as an area that 
required transforming in 
May 2017 and a paper 
was placed before COG 
setting out how we were 
planning to do this and 
the fact that we needed 
to link the plan directly 
to the strategic 
objectives, priorities and 
risk registers. WIASS will 
seek to incorporate this 

Circa June 2018 
i.e. 2018/19 
planning 
process so 
immediate but 
ongoing action.

2018/19 onwards Plans driven by 
corporate risk, service risk, service 
plans, and linked to overall Corp. 
objectives and identified in the audit 
plans.  Discussed at SMT level prior 
to Committee and presented at 
Committee for consideration and an 
opportunity to influence the plan.

P
age 68



No Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

The WIASS Charter

Links to organisational objectives 
and priorities

in the 2018/19 plans. 
Although risk registers 
are used as part of the 
current planning direct 
links will be made to 
clearly indicate to 
committee.

C9 Include guidance on informing 
management when key issues arise 
during an audit

There has always been 
an agreement that s151 
Officers/Heads of Service 
would be informed in 
regard to significant/key 
issues arising from 
reviews if it was 
considered an 
immediate action was 
required or there was a 
risk of, or actual, fraud 
taking place.  This can be 
formalised and included 
in guidance notes for 
compliance.

By April 2018

Included in the 
current Charter 
at 4.6in regard 
to the s151 and 
HIASS liaison 
but to include 
management as 
well 
Included in the 
revised Charter 
for 2018.

Internal Audit Charter has been 
revised and is before the Partner 
Committees for approval 
September/October 2018 with 
regular updates since.  Auditors are 
aware that any material issues are to 
be raised at the time.  Agreement in 
place that HoIASS would consult 
s151 if considered appropriate.

C10 Make the link between the PSIAS, 
LGAN and activities undertaken in 
performing an audit clear, for 
example, by quoting specific 
standards

Can include in brief. 
Currently holding 
workshops re. service 
transformation and 
methodology impact 

By April2018 See notes in Recommendation 4.

In brief document referenced the IIA 
PSIAS and Ethical Standards under 
the Independence and Ethics 

P
age 69



No Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

therefore part of 
consideration.   Links 
directly to 
Recommendation 4

section.  Embedded practice for all 
reviews having been used for circa 
12 months and continues to evolve.

C11 Develop a retention scheme for 
HWFRS and finalise the MHDC 
scheme

WIASS uses a retention 
scheme in regard to all 
Partners but can seek to 
finalise schemes with 
specific partners with 
specific linkage to 
General Data Protection 
Regulation 
requirements.

By May 2018 Appropriate action undertaken and 
continuing liaison with Partner’s to 
ensure all schemes are linked and 
remain appropriate.

C12 Ensure that all coaching notes are 
signed off and dated

Agreed.  All coaching to 
be signed off and dated 
in a timely manner to 
achieve full compliance.   

Immediate 
action.
Support post 
created to assist 
with the overall 
Service 
administration.  
Post duties to 
include a review 
of all coaching 
notes and track 
them at final 

Review of 2017-18 reports 
completed, all planning and 
fieldwork documents signed off
2018-19 tracking ongoing as part of 
support post plus other additional 
monitoring duties within the Service 
to ensure there is no breach of sign 
off protocol and housekeeping 
measures remain appropriate and 
robust.

P
age 70



No Recommendation Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

report stage to 
ensure they are 
satisfied and 
signed off.

end

P
age 71



Suggestions:

No Suggestion Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

S1 Amend the Charter to state that 
audit’s remit extends across the 
entire control environment of each 
organisation

Agreed. Charter to be 
updated to include a 
statement.

By April 2018 Included in the revised draft Charter 
for 2018. Completed Sept 2018 and 
regular updates since.

S2 Introduce annual formal private 
meetings between audit committees 
and the HoIASS

This can be incorporated 
as part of the annual 
report position.  COG 
discussion

November 2017 Different Partners have different 
requirements.  Where the meetings 
are required, wanted and add value 
these are being held.  Chair briefings 
are occurring as well where 
appropriate.

S3 Invite appropriate staff, for example 
CoG, to be included in the quality 
assurance programme periodically

COG is included as part 
of the quality assurance 
programme at least once 
a year during COG 
meeting. QA is always 
requested from clients 
on the completion of the 
audit. Will seek to widen 
the scope and formalise 
the quality assurance 

November 2017 Feedback from clients after the audit 
has been finalised was already in 
place but has been reconsidered to 
ensure maximum feedback is 
obtained.  Director of Finance / 
Chair of CoG providing feedback 
from CoG meetings to HoIASS

P
age 72



No Suggestion Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

programme. COG 
discussion

S4 Make greater use of corporate risk 
registers in developing annual audit 
plans

Currently considered as 
part of the process but 
will provide a direct link 
to formalise the links 
between risk registers, 
audit plan and corporate 
priorities for the future.

Circa June 2018 
i.e. as part of 
the 2018/19 
planning 
process so 
immediate but 
ongoing action.

Completed as part of the 2018/19 
planning process; direct links 
established between corporate risk 
register, service risk register and 
Corporate Strategies.  Links included 
in the plan for transparency.

S5 Emphasise to audit committee 
members that the plan is based on 
strategic risks

To be included in the 
annual audit plan report 
and as part of the report 
presentation with direct 
linkage to the strategic 
risks. Links to S6.

Circa June 2018 
i.e. as part of 
the 2018/19 
planning 
process for all 
Partners

Completed as part of the 2018/19 
planning process; direct links 
established between corporate risk 
register, service risk register and 
Corporate Strategies.  Links included 
in the plan for transparency.  
Paragraph included in committee 
reports as to the process followed in 
the formulation of the plan and the 
resource requirements.

S6 The annual audit plan should 
prioritise audit assignment, for 

To be included in the 
annual audit plan report 

Circa June 2018 
i.e. as part of 

Completed January 2018 as part of 
the 2018/19 planning process with 

P
age 73



No Suggestion Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

example by showing the risk ranking 
or using H/M/L ratings

and as part of the report 
presentation with direct 
linkage to the strategic 
risks and the risk rating 
provided. Links to S5.

the 2018/19 
planning 
process for all 
Partners

high medium or low, or, a 
combination of levels where 
appropriate being included in the 
plan.  Direct links established 
between corporate risk register, 
service risk register and Corporate 
Strategies.  Links included in the plan 
for transparency.  Paragraph 
included in committee reports as to 
the process followed in the 
formulation of the plan and the 
resource requirements and the 
priority to be applied

S7 Consider an alternative layout for 
audit reports that is easier to read

Will consider as part of 
the workshops and 
methodology update 
currently being 
undertaken. To consider 
table of findings/ 
recommendations as 
landscape rather than 
portrait with more 

Apr-18 Discussed at COG November 2017 
and current format to remain as it is 
liked and can be easily followed.

P
age 74



No Suggestion Response Proposed 
Implementation 
Date

Action Taken Position 
June 
2019

emphasis on the risk. 
Links to S8.

S8 Explore ways to make the follow-up 
process clear to officers and audit 
committees

Will consider as part of 
the workshops and 
methodology update 
currently being 
undertaken. Perhaps 
there needs to be better 
education at key times 
during the review to get 
the message across in 
regard to the follow up 
process. This can also be 
emphasised actually in 
the reports and during 
their formal issue in 
covering emails. Links to 
S7.

Apr-18 Standard template written for 
officers to use when issuing Final 
Reports stating the follow up time 
frame for that audit.  Follow up also 
added to the 4A - Post Clearance 
Draft Audit Report template.  New 
report template agreed. Email 
template distributed for auditors to 
use.

end

P
age 75



Page 76



Report to: Audit and Governance Committee 29th July 2019

Report of: Head of Internal Audit Shared Service, Worcestershire Internal Audit 
Shared Service

Subject: INTERNAL AUDIT 2018/2019 ANNUAL REPORT INCLUDING THE 
AUDIT OPINION AND COMMENTARY.

1. Recommendation

1.1 That the Committee notes the report contents.

2. Background

2.1 The Council is required under Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 to “undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, control and governance processes, taking into account public sector 
internal auditing standards or guidance”.

2.2 The Internal Audit (IA) plan was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee 
on the 21st March 2018.  WIASS has delivered the audit programme in conformance 
with the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, as amended, published by the 
Institute of Internal Auditors.

2.3 This report summarises Internal Audit activity during 2018/19 and provides an 
overall Internal Audit Opinion (Appendix 5).

3. Summary of Activity

2018/2019 Key Internal Audit Inputs

3.1 A summary of the position is provided at Appendix 1 which shows 326 days were 
delivered against a budget of 327. The days used to complete these reviews are 
accounted for in the 2018/19 plan.

2018/2019 Key Internal Audit Planned Outputs

3.2 During 2018/19 Internal Audit were required to:-

 complete a minimum of 12 full systems audits, of which 5 were needed to 
suitably assist the External Auditor reach their “opinion” in regard to the 
corporate financial systems

 provide sufficient audit resources for other operational areas which assist 
the Council maintaining and improving its control systems and risk 
management processes or implementing and reinforcing its oversight of 
such systems, i.e. 

Page 77 Agenda Item 9



 provide an on-going consultancy to managers on internal control, for 
example where system changes are being made;

 carry out investigations into any suspected instances of  fraud;

 service the Audit and Governance Committee and any other Committee 
requiring input from Internal Audit on internal audit and value for money 
matters;

 meet Internal Audit’s external work requirements;

 achieve an anticipated benchmark delivery target for 2018/2019 of 90% of 
operational days over the year as a whole.

2018/2019 Internal Audit Actual Outputs

3.3 Internal Audit has carefully managed its resources and worked with Partners to 
deliver a full audit programme for Worcester City Council for 2018/19 including any 
amendments agreed with the s151 Officer as well as delivering a lengthy 
investigation for another partner.  The Head of Worcester Internal Audit Shared 
Service has also had direct involvement in the investigation of several stage 2 
complaint investigations and a disciplinary hearing. 

3.4 There was steady progress throughout the year in regard to plan delivery, 
culminating in the required coverage to allow the s151 as well as the Head of 
Internal Audit Shared Service to form an overall opinion in respect of the Annual 
Governance Statement.  2018/19 was a very demanding year for the internal audit 
team with four new of members starting in April 2018 and settling in during the 
year. Revisions to the plan during the year were made in full consultation with the 
s151 Officer, including an extra piece of work in regard to Health and Safety 
BS18001. 

3.5 As can be seen in Appendix 1 the annual budget was 327 audit days of which the 
actual days delivered were 326. Regular updates have been brought before 
committee throughout the year to keep it informed along with regular updates to the 
Governance Board and s151 Officer. 

3.6 The internal audit service delivered above the minimum number requirement of audit 
reviews for the year. A figure of 100% (rounded)was achieved reflecting any 
revisions to the plan to take into consideration a changing environment.  Other key 
performance indicators are provided in Appendix 2.  

3.7 Appendix 3 sets out audit report ‘follow up’ summary results that have been 
compiled during the 2018/2019 financial year. Any exceptions arising from audit 
‘follow up’ are reported to Audit and Governance Committee.   During the 2018/2019 
financial year there was one exception (i.e. where no action was taken and the 
implementation date had been exceeded) reported to Audit and Governance 
Committee but this was satisfied within the financial year.

3.8 Due to the careful management of resource availability during the year all audit 
areas identified in the revised plan were covered.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

Page 78



3.9 At 2018/19 year end, 18 reviews had been completed, including 4 audits awaiting 
management response for final completion; all at draft report stage. The audits 
which have been reported to this Committee prior to this report were as follows:

 the summary details of 7 finalised 2017/18 audits were reported to this 
Committee on 19th September 2018 along with an update in respect of the 
2018/19 audits progressing at the time; 4 in progress;

 the detail of 2 finalised 2018/19 audit reports were reported to this 
Committee on the 19th December 2018 along with summary details of 2 at 
draft report stage and progress in regard to 6 further audits progressing at 
the time;

 audit progress was reported to this Committee on the 20th March 2019 in 
respect of 3 finalised reviews, 5 at completion and 6 reviews progressing at 
the time.

3.10 Appendix 4 sets out a summary of all the audit reports for the year.

3.11 Consultancy, Investigations/NFI and Accounts Panel work are demand-led activities 
and can fluctuate from year to year. Time has also been allocated to work as the key 
contact for this Council for the National Fraud Initiative (the data matching exercise 
now carried out by the Cabinet Office, formerly by the Audit Commission). During 
2018/2019 a large biennial data capture and upload exercise took place with WIASS 
operating in a coordinating role.  The next data capture and upload is programmed 
for December 2019.  

3.12 Work is continuing in respect of the NFI exercise.  Appropriate action is being taken 
and work is progressing to identify any potential fraudulent activity for example 
overpayment for housing benefits, income support, etc.

3.13 Corporate issues have continued to feature in audit work, in particular risk 
management, National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and the provision of audit advice, for 
example, on the implementation of business improvement work streams along with 
good practice internal controls.

3.14 Risk Management features as part of the audit programme for the year with reports 
brought before the Audit and Governance Committee for consideration.  

3.15 We recognise there are other review functions providing other sources of assurance 
(both internally and externally) over aspects of the Council’s operations.  Where 
possible we will seek to place reliance on such work, thus reducing the internal audit 
coverage as required.

Audit Opinion

3.16 The Annual Audit Opinion is provided at Appendix 5 which is a requirement of the 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Service.  The opinion is compiled using a combination 
of elements throughout the year but is based primarily on the results of the internal 
audit work undertaken over the past twelve months. 

3.17 Based on the audits performed in accordance with the revised audit plan, the Head 
of Internal Audit Shared Service has concluded that:

Page 79



 the internal control arrangements for 2018/19 managed the principal risks 
identified in the audit plan and can be reasonably relied upon to ensure 
that the Council’s corporate purposes have been met.

 risk management needs to continue to be embedded throughout the whole 
of the organisation. Further development of the ‘Covalent’ system will 
assist in this process with automatic monitoring and more informed 
reporting. 

Follow Up Audits

3.18 Follow up audit work has been undertaken throughout the year and reported to 
Committee on areas including core financials, economic engagement, Use of Council 
Assets, and Safeguarding, the results of which are compiled on an on-going basis 
and provided in summary form for information at Appendix 3. Any material 
exceptions (no action by the implementation date) arising from audit ‘follow up’ are 
reported to the Audit and Governance Committee.  There was one exception 
reported to Committee but this was actioned during the 2018/19 financial year.

Work of interest to the External Auditor

3.19 The audit plan was shared with the external auditors for information and helped 
avoid duplication of audit work. The results of the work we performed in regard to 
eight systems audits, including shared services, was of direct interest to External 
Audit and reports were passed to them for information on request. Internal Audit is 
continuing to develop the relationship with Ernst Young for the future. 

External Work

3.20 The work to deliver the Place Partnership Ltd internal audit contract was completed 
during 2018/19 with only management responses awaited in order to finalise audits. 
The working arrangement came to a natural end of contract and has not been 
renewed.

Quality Measures - Internal

3.21 Managers are asked to provide feedback on reviews by completing a questionnaire 
on completion. At the conclusion of each review a feedback questionnaire is sent to 
the Responsible Manager.  During the year three were received and along with 
anecdotal evidence showed full satisfaction with the audit product (Appendix 2).

3.22 WIASS internal audit activity is organisationally independent.  Internal Audit reports 
to the s151 Officer but has a direct and unrestricted access to senior management 
and the Audit and Governance Committee Chair.

3.23 Further quality control measures embedded in the service include individual audit 
reviews and regular Client Officer feedback.  All staff work to a given methodology 
and have access to the internal audit material and Charter which continue to be 
updated to reflect changing requirements of the Audit Service and Standards. A copy 
of the Audit Charter is reported at Appendix 6.

3.24 The Client Officer group made up of the Partner s151 Officers, met on a regular basis 
and considered the performance of the Shared Service including progress against the 

Page 80



Service Plan.  They continue to actively promote continuous improvement in the 
Service.

3.25 WIASS has delivered the audit programme in conformance with the UK Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards as published by the Institute of Internal Auditors. The 
outcome has confirmed that there is a sound basis from which the shared service 
continues to work and will be enhanced as a process of continuous improvement is 
implemented. Further improvement has been identified through the self assessment 
process which was carried out in April 2019 and a quality assurance improvement 
plan (QAIP) has been formulated and is reported at Appendix 7.

Ward(s): N/A
Contact Officer: Andy Bromage. 
Telephone: 01905 722051  
Email: andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk
Background Papers: None

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 82



APPENDIX 1

Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19

Audit Area Original
2018/19 Plan Days

2018/19 Plan Days 
Delivered

Core Financial Systems
(See note 1) 98 98

Corporate Audits 6 6
Other Systems Audits 
(See note 2) 150 164

Sub Total 254 268

Audit Management Meetings 30 22
Corporate Meetings / 
Reading 25 24

Annual Plans, Reports and 
Audit Committee support 18 12

Other chargeable (See note 3) 0 0

 Sub Total 73 58

 Total 327 326

Note:

Days are rounded to the nearest whole.

Note 1: This figure includes Quality Assurance monitoring work and the Revenues and Benefits Shared Service audit work undertaken. A 
rolling programme of testing was introduced during 2018/19 for a number of the core financial systems which has provided better coverage.

Note 2: Other Systems Audits’ include budgets which are used throughout the year as well as those budgets which are used for specific 
events (e.g. investigations ) on a draw down basis therefore the amount of days used can fluctuate across the quarters.  Over the last two 
quarters there has been a significant demand in regard to investigatory days for stage 2 complaints and other work.

Note 3:  IT issues which have led to interruptions in delivery and required resource to rectify are reflected in this figure.

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 84



APPENDIX 2
Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2018-2019
The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against some of the following 
key performance indicators for 2018/19. Other key performance indicators link to overall governance 
requirements of Worcester City Council e.g. KPI 4 to 6.

* Below target figure due to 4 new starters in April 2018 therefore settling in and training requirements in the early part of the 
year but showing a positive trend increasing from a revised 60% Q1 to 76% at the end of Q4 providing an average of 67% for 
the year.

WIASS operates within, and conforms to, the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended.

KPI Trend/Target 
requirement

2017/18 
Year End 
Position

2018/19
Year End 
Position

Frequency 
of 

Reporting
Operational

1 No. of audits 
achieved during 
the year 

Per target Target = 14 
(minimum)

Delivered 
15

Target = 12
(minimum)

Delivered
18

(including 4 in 
draft)

When Audit 
Committee 
convene

2 Percentage of Plan 
delivered

>90% of 
agreed annual 

plan

82% 100% When Audit 
Committee 
convene

3 Service 
productivity

Positive 
direction year 

on year 
(Annual target 

74%)

74% 67% When Audit 
Committee 
convene

Monitoring & Governance
4 No. of ‘high’ 

priority 
recommendations 

Downward
(minimal)

1 10 When Audit 
Committee 
convene

5 No. of moderate or 
below assurances

Downward
(minimal)

8 6 When Audit 
Committee 
convene

6 ‘Follow Up’ results

(Using 2017/18 reviews 
onwards)

Management 
action plan 

implementation 
date exceeded

(nil)

Nil to report 1 When Audit 
Committee 
convene

Customer Satisfaction
7 No. of customers 

who assess the 
service as 
‘excellent’

Upward
(increasing)

8x issued with 
6x returned

  6x excellent

3x issued with 
3x returned

1x excellent

When Audit 
Committee 
convene

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 86



APPENDIX 3

Summary of Audit Report Follow Up for 2018/19.

Number of audit areas followed up: 3 not including the core financials.

Audit & Year

Fo
llo

w
 U

p
 C

om
p

le
te

d

To
ta

l N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 
‘H

ig
h

’ a
n

d
 ‘M

ed
iu

m
’ 

p
ri

or
it

y 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s

N
u

m
b

er
 

of
 r

ec
om

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
w

h
er

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
e 

h
as

 p
as

se
d

C
om

p
le

te
d

/
 S

at
is

fi
ed

In
 p

ro
g

re
ss

N
o 

A
ct

io
n

N
u

m
b

er
  o

f 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n

s 
w

h
er

e 
‘N

o 
A

ct
io

n
’ 

d
u

e 
to

 r
ev

is
ed

 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti

on
 d

at
e 

ag
ai

n
st

 o
ri

g
in

al
 

2016/17
Safeguarding June 2018 2 2

2017/18
Economic 
Engagement 

June 2018 1 1

Use of Council 
Asset

November 
2018 3 3

Debtors (Escalated) October 
2018 2 2 2

All core financials

Total 8 2 8

    

Page 87



Conclusion:

During 2018/2019 IA considers, overall, reasonable progress was made by 
the respective managers and services with regard to the implementation of 
their action plans against reported Internal Audit recommendations.  During 
the past twelve months there was one exception in regard to Debtors which 
was reported to the Audit and Governance Committee in December 2018. The 
outstanding recommendations were satisfied before financial year end. In 
regard to critical friend audit e.g. ICT GDPR there has been a positive 
direction of travel.

In 2019/20 follow up on ‘high’ and ‘medium’ priority recommendations will 
continue to be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee on a 
quarterly basis for all audits as they fall due for review/follow up.

Page 88



APPENDIX 4
Audit Opinion Summary Analysis

Audits completed during financial year 2018/19 and used to 
inform the overall audit opinion:

Audit Report / Title Final Report issued Assurance

Treasury Management 28th March 2019 Full
Leisure Contract 27th November 2018 Significant
Health and Safety BS18001 Consultancy 17th December 2018 Significant
Main Ledger 9th March 2019 Significant
Welfare Assistance 13th June 2019 Significant
Tourism Strategy 7th November 2018 Moderate
Cemeteries and Crematorium 26th April 2019 Moderate
Health and Safety (Record Keeping) 20th December 2018 Limited
GDPR 14th January 2019 Critical Friend

Shared Service:
Debtors 25th March 2019 Full
Creditors 25th March 2019 Significant
Non Domestic Rates
(Revenues and Benefits Shared Service)

5th April 2019 Significant

Council Tax
(Revenues and Benefits Shared Service)

11th April 2019 Significant

Payroll 3rd May 2019 Moderate

Council Tax and Housing Benefits  (D)
(Revenues and Benefits Shared Service)

16th April 2019 (D) Moderate (D)

ICT 
(ICT Shared Service) 3rd May 2019 (D) Significant (D)
Regulatory Services 10th May 2019 (D) Significant (D)

Homelessness Reduction Act 3rd June 2019 (D) Limited (D)

Note: (D) denotes draft report and assurance issued; no variation is expected.

Page 89



Summary of 2018/19 Audit Assurance Levels from 18 Audits

It is unlikely that the draft assurance levels will change therefore due to the 
number awaiting management response they have been included in the summary 
figures.

Number of 
Audits

Assurance Overall %

(Rounded)

2 Full 11%
9 Significant 50%
4 Moderate 22%
2 Limited 11%
0 No 0%
1 Critical Friend 6%
0 To be confirmed 0%

Page 90



APPENDIX 5

WORCESTER CITY COUNCIL
Commentary and Audit Opinion 2018/19

Internal Audit: Worcester City Council’s responsibility for maintaining an 
adequate and effective internal audit function is set out in Regulation 5 of the 
Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2015.

The Internal Audit function has operated as a shared service since 2010/11 
and is hosted by Worcester City Council for 5 district councils and Worcester 
Fire and Rescue Authority.  The shared service conforms to CIPFA guidance 
and the Institute of Internal Auditors International Standards for the UK Public 
Sector, as amended, and objectively reviews on a continuous basis the extent 
to which the internal control environment supports and promotes the 
achievement of the Council’s objectives and contributes to the proper, 
economic and effective use of its resources.

The Internal Audit Plan for 2018/2019 was risk based (assessing audit and 
assurance factors, materiality risk, impact of failure, system risk, resource 
risk  fraud risk, and external risk) using a predefined scoring system which is 
embedded in the methodology, and was approved by the Audit and 
Governance Committee at its meeting of 21st March 2018. The Plan included 
proposed reviews of:

 a number of core systems in order to assist the external auditor 
to reach their ‘opinion’

 other corporate systems, such as governance arrangements, and 
a number of operational systems, such as Leisure Contract, 
Welfare Assistance, Tourism Strategy, Health and Safety (Record 
Keeping), to help maintain and improve control systems and risk 
management processes or reinforce oversight of such systems.

Overall conclusion:

Based on the audits performed in accordance with the revised audit 
plan, the Head of Internal Audit Shared Service has concluded that the 
internal control arrangements for 2018/19 managed the principal risks 
identified in the audit plan and can be reasonably relied upon to ensure 
that the Council’s corporate purposes have been met.

Risk Assessment Conclusion:

Page 91



Risk management needs to continue to be embedded throughout the 
whole of the organisation. Further development of the ‘Covalent’ 
system will assist in this process with automatic monitoring and more 
informed reporting. 

Findings

1. The 2018-2019 internal audit plan, and any revision thereto, was 
delivered providing sufficient coverage to assist in arriving at the audit 
opinion. Audits across the corporate spectrum have been undertaken 
and the outcomes have been reported to Audit and Governance 
Committee where appropriate. Core financial audits provided overall 
reasonable assurance. The work that has been undertaken in regard to 
Shared Services has also been considered. All of the individual internal 
audit assignments ensure that every auditor gives an assurance 
statement on the level of controls in place for each audit assignment of 
full, significant, moderate, limited or no assurance.  This provides a 
significant contribution to form an overall audit opinion on the control 
environment within the Council at the end of the year.

2. The link between risk identification and control is of fundamental 
interest to internal auditors, although the responsibility for controlling 
the risk itself rests firmly with line managers, who must ensure that 
appropriate controls are considered to help manage the identified risks. 
All internal audit recommendations made during the year were 
discussed with line managers at draft report stage and agreed. It is in 
the managers’ own interests to ensure that agreed audit 
recommendations are actioned and this can be facilitated by the action 
plan in each internal audit report. The Audit and Governance Committee 
can thus take assurance from the opinion given.

3. Of the audit reviews that took place, 16 of 18 have been allocated an 
overall assurance of ‘moderate’ or above.  ‘Moderate’ or above indicates 
that there is generally a sound system of internal control in place, no 
significant control issues have been encountered and no material losses 
have been identified.  2 reviews (Health and Safety Record Keeping and 
Homelessness Reduction Act 2018) were given a statement of ‘limited’ 
assurance.  Management are committed to robust actions plans to 
mitigate any potential risk identified by these reviews as part of the 
continuous service improvement. Assurance is limited to the few areas 
of the system where controls are in place and are operating effectively. 

4. There was a low level fraud identified during the year which was dealt 
with through internal procedures and policy.  There was no material 
loss identified in regard to this action. 

5. Based on the 18 audits performed in accordance with the revised audit 
plan and inclusive of Shared Services, the Head of Internal Audit 

Page 92



concludes that the Council’s governance framework arrangements 
during 2018/2019 have not always provided full assurance but 
outstanding issues were being addressed as part of the transitional 
process and continuous improvement. Risk Management continues to 
develop and evolve throughout the Authority but further work is 
required to completely embed it. Although ‘limited assurance’ was 
applied to two reviews and a low level fraud was identified a clear 
management action plan was agreed and put in place to tackle the risk 
areas. The lack of serious shortcomings found in the rest of audits 
carried out during the 2018/19 year indicates that the Council’s internal 
control arrangements are generally adequate and that the principal 
risks identified in the audit plan are effectively managed. The internal 
control system can be reasonably relied upon to ensure that the 
Council’s corporate objectives can be met.

6. WIASS acknowledges that no system of control can provide absolute 
assurance against material misstatement or loss, nor can Internal Audit 
give that assurance. This statement is intended to provide reasonable 
assurance based on the audits performed in accordance with the 
approved plan, and any revision thereto, and the scoping therein. 

Andy Bromage
Head of Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service
July 2019

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank.

Page 94



APPENDIX 6

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared 
Service (WIASS)

Internal Audit Charter

Worcester City Council

Definitions

1. Management   refers to the Managing Director, Directors, Deputy Directors , Heads of Service  
and Team Leaders

2. Board refers to the Audit and Governance Committee.  

This Charter was last reviewed September 2018 and approved by the Audit and Governance 
Committee on 19th September 2018.

Page 95



1. Introduction

Purpose

1.1  The purpose of this charter is to define what Internal Audit is and explain its purpose, role 
and responsibilities. 

Provision of Internal Audit Services

1.2      WIASS covers five district authorities Wychavon, Malvern Hills, Bromsgrove, Redditch and 
Worcester and one Fire Service, Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue Authority. WIASS 
will provide internal audit services to third parties under contractual arrangements.

 Worcester City Council hosts the Shared Service provision under an on-going Administrative 
Collaborative Agreement. It is governed by a Client Officer Group (COG) which is made up of 
the district and Fire Service s151 officers each having an ‘equal say’.  The Client Officer 
Group meets approximately 4 times a year.

1.3 For line management matters internal audit will report to the Corporate Director of Resources 
(s151 Officer within Worcester City Council) and the Monitoring Officer in their prolonged 
absence.

2. Mission and Definition

2.1 Mission:

“To enhance and protect organisational value by providing risk-based and objective 
assurance, advice and insight”.

Additional information can be found on the local intranet site:

https://staffroom.worcester.gov.uk/internal-audit 

2.2 Definition:

Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to 
add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an organisation accomplish its 
objectives by bring a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the 
effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.

3. Scope and Authority of Internal Audit Work 

3.1 Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 No. 234 Part 2 Regulation 5:

 (1) A relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes, taking into account 
public sector internal auditing standards or guidance. 

(2) Any officer or member of a relevant authority must, if required to do so for the purposes 
of the internal audit— 

(a) make available such documents and records; and

(b) supply such information and explanations;

Page 96

https://staffroom.worcester.gov.uk/internal-audit%20


as are considered necessary by those conducting the internal audit. 

(3) In this regulation “documents and records” includes information recorded in an electronic 
form. 

To aid compliance with Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the United Kingdom 2006 details 
that “Internal Audit should work in partnership with management to improve the control 
environment and assist the organisation in achieving its objectives”.

Internal Audit work should be planned, controlled and recorded in order to determine 
priorities, establish and achieve objectives.

3.2 In the course of their reviews internal audit staff, under the direction of the Head of Service, 
shall have authority in all partner organisations to:-

 at all reasonable times after taking account of audit requirements, enter on any partners’ 
premises or land; 

 have access to, and where internal audit deem necessary take into their possession, any 
records, documents and correspondence relating to any matter that is the subject of an 
audit; 

 require and receive such explanations as may be considered necessary from any officer of 
the Partner regardless of their position; 

 require any officer of the Partner to produce forthwith cash, stores or any other property 
under their control.

for the Partner in which the internal audit service is being provided.

3.3 Internal Audit work will normally include, but is not restricted to:

 review and assess the soundness, adequacy, integrity and reliability of financial and non-
financial management and performance systems, and quality of data;

 reviewing the means of safeguarding  assets;
 examine, evaluate and report on compliance with legislation, plans, policies, procedures, 

laws and regulations;
 promote and assist the Partner in the effective use of resources
 examine, evaluate and report on the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control and 

risk management across the Partner and recommend arrangements to address 
weaknesses as appropriate; 

 advise upon the control and risk implications of new systems or other organisational 
changes.

 provide a ‘critical friend’ to assist services to achieve value for money
 undertake independent investigations into allegations of fraud and irregularity in 

accordance with the Partner’s policies and procedures and relevant legislation
 at the specific request of management1, internal audit may provide consultancy services 

provided:

 the internal auditors independence is not compromised

Page 97



 the internal audit service has the necessary skills to carry out the assignment, or 
can obtain skills without undue cost or delay

 the scope of the consultancy assignment is clearly defined and management1 have 
made proper provision for resources within the annual plan

 management understands that the work being undertaken is not internal audit 
work.

3.4 IA’s remit extends across the entire control environment of the organisation and is not 
limited to certain aspects or elements.

4. Responsibility of Management1 and of Internal Audit.

4.1  At all times internal audit will operate in accordance with the partner’s Constitution and legal 
requirements and all internal audit staff will adhere to recognised Professional Standards and 
Codes of Conduct and Ethics e.g. the Institute of Internal Auditors’ and/or CIPFA as well as 
the Partner’s Codes of Conduct and Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policies.

4.2 It is the responsibility of Management to put in place adequate controls to ensure systems 
meet their objectives and that they are notified without delay of any instances where 
systems are failing to operate properly. However, where there has been, or there are 
grounds to suspect that there is risk of a serious breakdown in a significant system, the Head 
of Service should be informed of the problem and any counter measures already in hand or 
proposed, as quickly as possible, in order that the Head of Internal Audit Shared Service can 
decide whether audit involvement is needed.

4.3 Similarly, it is the responsibility of Management to put in place adequate controls to prevent 
and detect fraud, irregularities, waste of resource, etc. Internal Audit will assist Management 

to effectively manage these risks. However, no level of controls can guarantee that fraud and 
the like will not occur even when the controls are performed diligently with due professional 
care. As a consequence all cases of actual or suspected fraud should be reported to the Head 
of Internal Audit Shared Service forthwith. The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service will 
then decide the course of action to be taken with due regard to the Partner’s Constitution, 
e.g. Whistleblower’s Charter, Stopping Fraud and Corruption Strategy, etc.

4.4 Any officer of a partner organisation who has genuine concerns at raising a suspected 
instance of fraud or malpractice through their normal reporting channels can raise the matter 
under the Partner’s Whistleblower’s Charter directly with any of the persons named in the 
policy document, including the Head of Internal Audit Shared Service. Head of Internal Audit 
Shared Service will then pursue the matter in accordance with the provisions of the policy 
document. 

4.5 Internal audit is not responsible for any of the activities which it audits. WIASS will not 
assume responsibility for the design, installation, operation or control of procedures. However 
should any partner/client contract for specialist services within an area then the WIASS staff 
member assigned will not be asked to review any aspect of the work undertaken until two 
years have passed from the completion of the assignment.

4.6 The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service will ensure that the relevant Head of Service 
and/or Section 151 Officer is briefed on any matter coming to the attention of internal audit, 
either through a review or otherwise, that could have a material impact on the finances, 
create an unacceptable risk or be fraudulent for  the Partner as quickly as possible, and will 
ensure the appropriate Officer of the Authority e.g. Director, Monitoring Officer is regularly 

Page 98



briefed on the progress of audits having a corporate aspect. Matters involving fraud or 
malpractice are to be reported in line with the anti-fraud and corruption policy. The most 
appropriate action/engagement of the relevant Head of Service will be determined by the 
HoWIASS depending on the circumstances.

4.7 In order to (1) maintain a broad skills base within Internal Audit and (2) maximise the ability 
of the team to offset the cost of providing the internal audit function to the Partner, the 
strategic plan will include a commitment that internal audit obtains income to the Partner 
from external work either from partnership working and/or selling its expertise. Such 
activities will be governed by targets set out in the Collaborative Administrative Agreement 
and will be approved and reported on to the Client Officer Group.

5. Planning and Reporting

5.1 To meet the objectives above, the Head of Internal Audit Shared Service shall:-

a) prior to the beginning of each financial year, following consultation with Management1 
and after taking into account comments from Members arising from the reporting 
process set out below, provide the  Committee with:

- a risk based audit plan forecasting which of the Partner’s activities are due to 
receive audit attention in the next 12 months. The risk based plan will take into 
consideration a number of risk factors including corporate risk register, service risk 
register, local knowledge, corporate promises or objectives, key strategic 
documents e.g. five year plan and any external audit guidance.   Where there is a 
potential difference between strategy/plan and resource this is reported to the 
Board2;

- a detailed operational plan using a risk based assessment methodology showing 
how/what resources will be required/allocated in the coming financial year in order 
to meet the requirements of the Partners strategic plans. The Plans will be flexible 
and include a small contingency contained as part of the consultancy budget to 
allow for changes in priorities, emerging risks, ad hoc projects, fraud and 
irregularity, etc. The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service will bring to the 
attention of the s151 Officer if this budget is depleted so an additional contingency 
can be agreed. ‘Consultancy’, for the purposes of WIASS activity, is defined as 
work that is of a specialist nature and commissioned/requested in regard to an 
area of work activity within a service area that is in addition to the agreed partners 
audit plan.  The work can be financial or governance based and the output will 
provide management1 with challenges to consider depending on its nature.  The 
approach to the assignment can be flexible but follow a similar path in regard to 
the methodology. 

b) during the course and at the close of each financial year provide the Board2 with:

- quarterly progress reports on actual progress compared to the plan and 
performance indicators. Such reports to highlight serious problems, either affecting 
the implementation of the plan, or, in the take up of audit recommendations;

Page 99



- an annual report summarising the overall results for the year compared to the plan 
and pointing out any matters that will impact on internal audit’s ability to meet the 
requirements in the strategic plan;

c) during the course and close of each full systems/risk audit provide the client manager1 
with:

- a copy of an audit brief and audit information request setting out the objectives 
and scope of the audit prior to commencement of the audit and a confirmation of 
resource requirements for the audit.

- draft recommendations, which will be discussed with the responsible manager1 
prior to sending the draft audit report.  The manager1 is responsible for confirming 
the accuracy of the audit findings and is invited to discuss the report during the 
‘clearance’ meeting prior to the issue of the draft report. 

- an audit report containing an overview of the quality of the control system, an 
opinion as to the level of system assurance and detailed findings and 
recommendations including priority. ‘Assurance’, for WIASS purposes, is defined as 
the determination of an overall outcome against a predetermined criteria leading to 
an applied level giving an overall summary for the work audited.

d) shortly after the close of each financial year provide for the purposes of the Annual 
Governance Statement:

- an annual audit opinion of the Partner’s system of controls based on the audit work 
performed during the year in accordance with the plans at 5.1(a) above and 
reported in accordance with 5.1(b) and (c) above and on the assurance 
methodology adopted, and, a statement of conformance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and the results of quality assurance and improvement 
programme.

5.2 Expectations of Clients:

Managers and staff should co-operate with the Auditors, and responses should be made to 
draft reports as outlined at 3 above. Responses should include an action plan, dates for 
action and responsibility where actions are delegated.  The final ‘High’ and ‘Medium’ 
recommendations will be reported to the Board2.

5.3 Audit reports will be drawn up following the internal audit report framework. A matrix type 
report displaying audit findings, risks and recommendations along with a column for 
management comments, as per 5.1(c), will be provided to management1. The report will also 
contain an introduction and priority categories for each of the recommendations.  A covering 
report will be attached to the matrix providing details of the partner organisation, circulation, 
audit scope and objectives, an audit opinion, an executive summary and an audit assurance 
rating as well as a clear indication of what action is required by management. 

5.4 Upon completion of audits, the audit exceptions will be discussed with the relevant line 
manager and will form the basis of the draft audit reports.  The draft audit reports are issued 
to the relevant line managers for them to confirm the accuracy of the audit findings and 
content.  Managers are invited to contact the Auditor if they wish to discuss the report and 
asked to show their response in the form of an action plan to each recommendation on the 
draft report.  For accepted recommendations, dates for action or implementation are 

Page 100



recorded.  The managers’ responses are recorded in the final reports that are issued to the 
appropriate Management1 officers as deemed relevant for the audit.

5.5 In accordance with professional standards, after three/six months from the date of issue of 
the final report, follow-up audits are undertaken to ensure that the agreed recommendations 
and action plans have been implemented, or, are in the process of being implemented.   A 
formal follow up procedure / methodology is used to follow up audit reports and reported on 
an exceptions basis.

5.6 Internal Audit works to the reporting quality standards of:
 draft audit reports to be issued within 5 working days of the clearance meeting;

 management responses received within 10 working days;

 final audit reports to be issued within 5 working days of the final discussions of the 
draft audit report and receipt of management responses; 

 final reports to be followed-up initially within 3 to 6 months of the date issue of the 
final audit report depending on the recommendation priority and residual risk, to 
ensure that the accepted recommendations due for implementation have been 
established.

5.7 Escalation for late or non return of audit reports will be instigated when after two requests 
the reports have not been provided by management.  The escalation will commence with the 
s151 Officer being informed of the late return.  If the report remains outstanding then the 
Board2 will be informed of the inaction with a view to them calling in the Officer to justify the 
late return.

6.  7 Principles of Public Life and how WIASS interprets and applies them. 

1. Selflessness   - protecting the public purse and ensuring all actions taken are solely in the 
public interest.   

2. Integrity  - completely independent and above undue bias or influence in the work that we do.

3. Objectivity – demonstrate impartiality and fairness in all aspects of our work and when 
reporting uses only the best evidence without discrimination or bias. 

4. Accountability – provide transparency and assurance holding people to account in regard to 
decisions and actions and provide assurance to those in governance roles.

5. Openness – to promote and ensure through good governance that decisions are taken in an 
open and transparent manner and no information is withheld from the public unless there are 
clear and lawful reasons for so doing

6. Honesty – to provide independent assurance to those in governance of confirmation of 
truthfulness

7. Leadership – through the audit work actively promotes and robustly supports the principles 
and shows a willingness to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs.

For further information on the principles of public life:

Page 101

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#selflessness
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#integrity
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#objectivity
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#objectivity
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#accountability
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#accountability
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#openness
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#honesty
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2#leadership


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-
of-public-life--2 

7.   Core Principles for Professional Practice and how WIASS interprets and applies them.

1. Demonstrates integrity:
WIASS works independently, without influence or undue bias.  The audit plan is created so 
that there are no conflicts of interest between the officer and the audit.  Potential conflicts of 
interest are formally checked annually with all members of the WIASS team.  Areas of risk 
for WIASS are identified and mitigated.  Potential areas of risk include, but are not limited to, 
auditors re-auditing Risk Management, NFI, and Regulatory Services in consecutive years and 
Services that they have transferred from.  Officers that have conflicts of interest, or if they 
are / have been working in the area of audit, will not undertake any audits in the conflicting 
area for a minimum of three years, safeguarding the officers and WIASS’ integrity.  Further 
protection is in place by using randomly selected testing samples and a series of independent 
review stages.  All audit working papers, reports and findings are reviewed and if necessary 
challenged before being issued to the client by either the Head of Service or Team Leader.    

2. Demonstrates competence and due professional care: 
All reports are reviewed and signed off by either the WIASS Head of Service or Team Leader 
both of which are highly qualified and governed by professional institution standards.  
Regular 1-2-1 meetings are held with each officer to ensure progress and personal 
development.  An “open door” culture is adopted throughout WIASS allowing all team 
members to ask for assistance advice and support at any time.  Training (both in-house and 
external) is available and is provided should it be deemed relevant and appropriate by Head 
of Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service (HoWIASS) / Team Leader.   

3. Is objective and free from undue influence: 
Independence and safeguarding is a key element of internal audit provision. All WIASS staff 
are vetted via the Basic Disclosure Check, as well as making a Declaration of Interest on an 
annual basis declaring any potential conflicts of interest with upcoming audit programme and 
the partners that WIASS work with.  No auditor, who has transferred from a Service, will 
audit that Service for a minimum of three years.  The Service is organisationally independent 
for all Partners.  Although the HoWIASS reports directly to the s151 Officers of the Partner 
organisations the role has direct and unrestricted access to the senior management team and 
Committee Chair. The Client Officer Group, who governs the Service, meets on a quarterly 
basis and is made up of the Partner s151 Officers.  They each have an equal vote and 
consider the strategic direction of the Service as well as progress and performance.   Further 
independence and safeguard checks are reported throughout this Charter in the form of 
checks, actions and process. 

4. Aligns with the strategies, objectives, and risks of the organisation:
The audit plan and it’s content is discussed with Management1and  s151 Officers to ensure 
that risks are identified; appropriate processes, systems and strategies are tested and that 
areas of risk are monitored and mitigated. Corporate and service risk registers are used 
along with corporate knowledge and the promises and objectives.  Five year plans are also 
considered as part of the risk profiling and plan definition.  

Page 102

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life/the-7-principles-of-public-life--2


5. Is appropriately positioned and adequately resourced:
As a shared service, WIASS is hosted by Worcester City Council, but audit allocations ensure 
a presence in all authorities that it serves across the year.  Resources are monitored and 
tracked throughout the annual audit plan, with forecasting used as often as possible to 
prevent resources becoming too stretched resulting in reduced coverage. WIASS is governed 
by a Client Officer Group made up from the Partner s151 Officers but also has direct access 
to Management1 and the Board2 Chairs. Delegated powers are used should there be any 
resourcing issues.
     

6. Demonstrates quality and continuous improvement: 
Continuous monitoring of the teams performance via trackers is conducted.  Quarterly and 
annual reports are issued to committee and board members demonstrating trends in 
productivity and value.  Individual reviews via 1-2-1 meetings are held monthly with the 
Team Leader, and include personal development plans for all team members.  Improvements 
and changes will also be made using external assessment as well as internally generated 
client feedback forms. A self assessment will be completed each municipal year to further 
provide assurance of quality and improvement.  The Service is working with partners to 
ensure that it continues to provide a ‘fit for purpose’ Service by developing techniques that 
will complement requirements, continue to add value and work in a changing environment 
e.g. critical friend reviews.  There is a continuous desire to ensure that the Service changes 
and adopts best practice methods as identified by the professional institutions e.g. IIA, 
CIPFA. 

7. Communicates effectively 
Various forms of communication are adopted (verbal, written, diagram / graph) throughout 
the review process by all members of the WIASS team.   Continued monitoring and 
improvements to the methodology are conducted, making the report and testing documents 
clearer for all users. Findings are discussed verbally with management1 prior to the 
 issue of a formal report. Reports are issued to Officers and Committee1 on a regular basis.
  

8. Provides risk-based assurance
The audit plans are risk based with reviews being classified from high to low risk. The review 
scope is risk based which drives the review without creating restrictions on the areas 
covered.     All findings are rated high, medium or low risk.  Risks associated with the 
findings are linked directly to the recommendation and the management action to mitigate it.  
The review risk is combined to create the overall assurance level of the audit, which will be 
presented to the client with explanation and reasoning in the form of a report. 

9. Is insightful, proactive and future-focused 
Insightful – where possible WIASS officers with relevant background experience will be 
assigned to conduct audits in similar fields.  Continued monitoring of current “audit and fraud 
affairs” is distributed to all WIASS team members.  A sharing of knowledge is encouraged in 
the Service and pre engagement research.  Identification of best practice is shared amongst 
the authorities. Reports identify areas that are working well as well as those that require 
improvement. Reviews look for efficiencies and better ways of working.
Proactive – scoping meetings are held for all audits allowing for changes to the audit scope in 
line with changes in service delivery and legislation between annual planning and audits 
starting. There is also an ability to vary the plan should an emerging risk present itself using 
delegated powers so the audit service can be proactive is providing assurance to those in 

Page 103



governance. Consultancy days are built into the plans to allow for pre implementation of new 
system/process advice. 
Future-focused – The Service will scan the horizon for risks and issues that are emerging.   
Networking using, for example, the Midlands Audit Group is used to help inform the audit 
plans and consultancy assignments to provide information to the partners before it becomes 
a potential issue for them. Monitoring of the next generation initiatives from Central 
Government and having a team of auditors aware of the potential risks and impact along with 
environmental control issues will assist in adding value for our partners.

10. Promotes organisational improvement
Ethics and culture are key aspects to organisation improvement.  WIASS reviews consider 
ethical and cultural aspects and the potential impact and associated risk. Liaison with s151 
Officers, Senior Management Teams and governance boards where applicable to promote 
continuous organisational development.  Audit Reports are issued to management1 to ensure 
oversight of the organisation and areas of concern including common themes are looked at 
and improved on.  High and Medium priority findings are followed up after a 3 or 6 month 
period respectively using an established methodology to ensure that potential risks are being 
mitigated and there is continuous improvement.  Findings will be followed up until such time 
that they are satisfied. Follow up on findings will be documented and reported to 
Management, Heads of Service and or the appropriate s151 to give assurance of action and 
risk mitigation.

For further information please reference:  
https://na.theiia.org/standards-guidance/mandatory-guidance/Pages/Core-Principles-for-the-
Professional-Practice-of-Internal-Auditing.aspx 

8. External Relationships

8.1 The main contacts are with: 

 Institute of Internal Auditors

 External Auditors

 Local Authorities in the Worcestershire area

 Local Authorities in the Midlands area

 Organisations within the Exeter Benchmarking Group

 CIPFA (publishers of the systems based auditing control matrices written by Exeter IA 
section)

 National Fraud Initiative via DCLG and Cabinet Office

But may include other external parties as necessary. 

8.2 Assurance will be accepted and reported from 3rd parties as long as WIASS can rely on their 
work and they are suitably qualified to carry out the assessment.  The relevance of the work 
will also be a consideration in using a 3rd party certification e.g. IT integrity testing.  

Page 104

https://na.theiia.org/standards-guidance/mandatory-guidance/Pages/Core-Principles-for-the-Professional-Practice-of-Internal-Auditing.aspx
https://na.theiia.org/standards-guidance/mandatory-guidance/Pages/Core-Principles-for-the-Professional-Practice-of-Internal-Auditing.aspx


8.3     Where work is undertaken on a contractual basis assurance will be provided to 3rd parties 
outside of the partnership as appropriately agreed. The methodology applied to audit 3rd 
party organisations will be the same as the methodology used for the members of the 
partnership.   All of the safeguards used to protect the integrity of the audits carried out for 
the partnership will be extended to 3rd parties as well and appropriate reporting protocols 
established as part of any contractual agreement. These will be established as part of the 
engagement with a clearly identified engagement officer and requirements.  No contract will 
be entered into if it is considered that the independence or integrity of the Service will be 
compromised.  If, during the delivery of a contract, it becomes apparent that there is undue 
influence being brought to bare and/or that the actions of the client is undermining the ethos 
of internal audit the HoWIASS will inform the Client Officer Group without delay so a strategic 
decision can be made to avoid any potential reputational damage or compromised 
independence. Any assurances provided to 3rd Parties will be based on the established 
internal methodology and the defined definitions of the different levels and priorities.

________________________________

Notes

a) In the absence of the Head of Internal Audit Shared Service all provisions relating to him/her 
above will apply to the relevant Team Leader in accordance with the duties allocated by the 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Service. 

Page 105



Version Control: Date of Change Action Updated by
1.0 2nd March 2012 Charter for WIASS AB
2.0 9th August 2012 Update to Charter AB
3.0 23rd April 2013 Update to Charter re. 

International Standards
AB

4.0 21st Janaury2016 Update to Charter re. 
legislative requirements & 
title changes

AB

5.0 1st July 2016 Update re. titles and 
definition of ‘consultancy’ 
and ‘assurance’.

AB

6.0 April 2017 Full review in line with 
Standards 

HT

7.0 May 2017 COG suggestion: Update of 
H&WFRS name to reflect 
legal entity & ‘Council’s’ to 
‘Partners’.

HT

8.0 June/July 2018 External Assessment 
recommendations: 
Update to Mission & 
Definition
Inclusion of 3.4, IA remit
Update to 4.6 regarding 
HIASS responsibility on 
briefing
Inclusion of 5.7, escalation 
for late and non return audit 
reports 
Inclusion of 6 – Principle of 
Public Life
Inclusion of 7 – Core 
Principles of Public Practice 
Inclusion of 8.2, assurance 
from 3rd Parties  
Inclusion of 8.3, assurance 
to 3rd Parties  

HG, AB, HT

Page 106



APPENDIX 7

Quality Assurance Improvement Plan for 2019/20.

Action 
No. Area to be actioned Outcome required Action 

To be 
undertaken 
by: 

Date to be 
completed Completed

Further 
Action 
Required

1 1112 - Safeguarding 
Independence 

Formal reporting to 
Client Officer Group 
(COG) confirming if 
there are, or are not, 
any conflicts of 
interest with the 
plan.  This is to be 
done on an annual 
basis following the 
annual ‘Declaration 
of Interest’ (DOI) 
from WIASS Staff   

Inform COG of DOI on the 
2019/20 Plan

Head of 
Internal 
Audit

4th July 2019 
due to 
postponed COG 
meeting in 
June 2019.

  

2 1320 - Inclusion of 
QAIP in Annual 
Reports

Following the 
development of the 
QAIP, this needs to 
be added to the 
annual reports for all 
partners

Update annual reports to 
include QAIP

Head of 
Internal 
Audit

Approx. August 
2019 
(dependent on 
Partner 
Committee 
date)  

 

3 2240 - Approving 
Work prior to starting

Develop a process 
where by we can QA 
the testing 
programme prior to 
testing being 
undertaken, and to 
ensure that a formal 
sign off has taken 
place by either Head 
of Internal Audit or 
Team Leader

Engage with staff via Team 
Meetings to agree a process 
and to adjust the 
methodology to reflect the 
initial sign off prior to the 
testing commencing.

Audit Team 
Leader

Dec-19   

P
age 107



4 2420 - Timely 
Completion of Stages

To make 
improvements in line 
with completing all 
stages of audits in a 
timely manner.

Stage monitoring will be 
picked up via 1-2-1's and 
the report monitoring will be 
picked up with the Audit 
Tracker "Response" tab (and 
discussed in 1-2-1's).

Audit Team 
Leader

Immediate 
implementation 
with ongoing 
monitoring 
throughout the 
year

  

5 2430 / 2450 – Use of 
‘Conducted in 
Conformance with 
International 
Standards for the 
Professional Practice 
of Internal Auditing 
(ISPPIA).

Include the QAIP in 
the annual report for 
all patterns, which 
will then allow us to 
quote the 
conformance to 
ISPPIA. 

Include the QAIP in the 
partner annual reports.

Head of 
Internal 
Audit

Approx. August 
2019 
(dependent on 
Partner 
committee 
dates)  

  

P
age 108



Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Revised Code of Corporate Governance and Annual Governance Statement
	Appendix 1- Annual Governance Statement 2018-2019 for publication with draft statement of accounts - final draft 19 July 2019
	Appendix 2 - Local Code of Corporate Governance 2019-20
	Appendix 3- Corporate Governance Action Plan- final draft 19 July 2019

	6 Corporate Risk Management Report Q4 2018/19
	Appendix 1 Corporate Risk Management Report

	8 Internal Audit External Assessment Progress Report
	9 Internal Audit 2018/2019 Annual Report including the Audit Opinion and Commentary

